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The Logo

The logo was developed from a concept 
created by Lainie Joy of Borroloola. The five 
flowing figures have multiple meanings. They 
represent the five wards in our Roper Gulf 
region (Never Never, Numbulwar Numburindi, 
Nyirranggulung, South West Gulf and Yugul 
Mangi), the five main rivers winding through 
our region (the Limmen, McArthur, Robinson, 
Roper and Rose Rivers), the low-lying 
hills that are visible on the horizon nearly 
everywhere in the region and the Rainbow 
Serpent that underlies everything. The 
colours are based on the different colours of 
the soils and the peoples co-existing in the 
Roper Gulf region.

Roper Gulf Regional Council Support Centre

Street Address 
2 Crawford Street Katherine NT 0850

Postal Address  
PO Box 1321 Katherine NT 0851

Phone: 08 8972 9000

Fax: 08 8911 7020

Email: info@ropergulf.nt.gov.au

Website: ropergulf.nt.gov.au

Roper Gulf Regional Council  
ABN 94 746 956 090

Workshop and Depot

Street Address  
63 Chardon Street Katherine NT 0850

Postal Address  
PO Box 1321 Katherine NT 0851

Council Offices

  Phone  Fax 
Barunga  08 8977 3200  08 8975 4595 
Beswick  08 8977 2200  08 8975 4565 
Borroloola  08 8975 7700  N/A 
Bulman  08 8975 4189  08 8975 4753 
Jilkminggan  08 8977 3100  08 8975 4905 
Manyallaluk 08 8975 4091  N/A 
Mataranka  08 8977 2300  08 8975 4608 
Ngukurr  08 8977 4601  N/A 
Numbulwar  08 8977 2101   N/A 
Urapunga 08 8977 4601 N/A

Other Locations

Badawarrka  
Baghetti 
Barrapunta (Emu 
Springs) 
Costello  
Daly Waters  
Jodetluk (Gorge Camp)  
Kewulyi 
Larrimah 

Minyerri  
Mole Hill 
Mount Catt 
Mulggan  
Nulawan (Nalawan) 
Numerloori 
Robinson River  
Weemol 
Werenbun

Acknowledgement of Traditional Owners

Roper Gulf Regional Council respectfully 
acknowledges the Traditional Owners of the land and 
pays respect for Elders past, present and emerging. 

Warning:  
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander readers are advised 
that this document may include the images of people 
who are deceased.  

This Annual Report was approved by Council at its 
Ordinary Meeting in Katherine on 26 October 2021.

Disclaimer:  
While care has been taken to ensure the content in this 
Annual Report is accurate, we cannot guarantee that is 
completely error free. We also value your feedback on 
how we present the information in this report. If you wish 
to share your feedback with us, please send an email to 
info@ropergulf.nt.gov.au.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Katherine 
Barunga 
Beswick 

Borroloola
Bulman 

Eva Valley 
Jilkminggan 
Mataranka 

Ngukurr 
Numbulwar 

Urapunga 

55
17
26
33
11
8
21
26
25
31
1

$800,000  
Rocky Creek Bridge 

$727,000
Swimming Pool 
Operations at  
Borroloola  
and Ngukurr   
 

$1.2million  
Ngukurr Freight Hub  

64% Indigenous  
Employees

Local Authorities Projects 2020-21

Positions based in townships, communities and outstations

Our People

Major Funded Projects in 2020-21

  

$498,000  

274  
Staff
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BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS

$23.2
million   
from Grants

$2.7
million   
from Rates  
& Charges

$12.2
million   
from Agency  

Contracts

$40.7 Million Operational Expenditure

$ 41.6 Million Operational Revenue

$6.3 Million

Community  
Development  

Program (CDP) 

$4.2 Million

Municipal 
Services 

$3.1 Million

Community  
Night Patrol

$2.1 Million  

Aged Care 
Services

$1.9 Million

Sport and  
Recreation 

$17.6 Million spent on the five largest service delivery programs

$9.3 Million

Materials and 
Contracts

$16.7 Million

Employee 
Costs

$208,723

Finance 
Costs

$6.4 Million

Depreciation and 
Impairment

$6.2 Million

Other 
Expenses
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

We are pleased to present Roper Gulf Regional 
Council’s (the Council’s) Annual Report for the  
2020-21 financial year. This report summarises  
the activities and performance of the Council 
over the 2020-21 financial year against the main 
objectives, strategies and targets outlined in our four-
year Strategic Plan. The Annual Report aims to inform 
both the Council and its constituents what progress 
the Council has made in making the Roper Gulf 
region sustainable, viable and vibrant. 

We would like to recognise all of our employees 
who are a part of delivering services, projects and 
programs in the communities within our region, for 
their efforts behind our results for the 2020-21 
financial year. Thank you to community-based staff 
who provide ongoing support to the residents of 
the communities in our Council area and for your 
assistance in helping to gather the information for 
this report. 

The Roper Gulf Regional Council Annual Report for 
the 2020-21 financial year has been developed in 
compliance with the Local Government Act 2019. 

Visit www.ropergulf.nt.gov.au to view all public 
documents and for more information on  
Council’s activities.
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MESSAGE FROM THE  
OUTGOING MAYOR 

As I reflect on the 2020-21 financial 
year, I would like to acknowledge 
and thank everyone in the Roper 
Gulf region who has helped drive 
the ongoing delivery of services, 
projects and programs in our 
communities and townships. 

The past year has brought with it a number of 
challenges, and I am proud of the commitment 
that was shown by Elected Members and staff to 
continue working towards improving the quality of 
life in our area. 

The following report aims to inform our stakeholders 
on Council’s activities, performance and significant 
achievements over the past year. As an organisation 
we are fully committed to transparency in the 
reporting process and ensuring our administration 
of public funds is sound. This report is an important 
contribution to that process. 

Throughout the 2020-21 financial year, 
infrastructure development remained to be a key 
priority for Council with a number of significant 
projects completed. 

In December 2020, the construction of the $6.7 
Million Rocky Creek Bridge was completed after 
3 years of community consultation and planning. 
The 9.5 metre high bridge located on Robinson 
Road in Borroloola, provides vital links between one 
end of town and the other and is now a safer and 
more reliable freight link in the wet seasons. After 
extensive community consultation and planning 
works, I was very proud to stand beside the funding 
partners in May 2021 as Mayor of Roper Gulf 

Regional Council, and officially open the bridge for 
the Borroloola Township. 

The previous financial year also saw the completion 
of the $1.6 Million Freight Hub in Ngukurr and 
$727,000 was allocated to swimming pool 
operations in Ngukurr and Borroloola. To see larger 
community projects come to their conclusion in the 
final year of our four year term of Council was a 
privilege and a great achievement. 

The 2020-21 financial year was one of continued 
progress, however it also marked the end of an era 
for 13 Elected Members who served during the 
previous term of Council. I would like to take this 
opportunity to thank my fellow Elected Members 
and Council’s Senior Management Team for your 
invaluable encouragement, thoughts and ideas 
during my term as Mayor of Roper Gulf Regional 
Council, as we worked together as one to contribute 
to a more sustainable, viable and vibrant Council 
region. 

Congratulations to Tony Jack on your successful 
election as Mayor for the next four years. I look 
forward to working with Mayor Jack as Council’s 
Deputy Mayor and am determined to see more 
important infrastructure projects completed across 
the region as we move into the 2021-22 financial 
year.

Judy MacFarlane

Outgoing Mayor,  
Roper Gulf Regional Council 
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MESSAGE FROM THE  
INCOMING MAYOR 

I am honoured to have been 
elected as Mayor of Roper Gulf 
Regional Council for its fourth term, 
and thank my fellow Councillors 
for putting their trust in me to lead 
them for the coming four years. 

As Mayor of Roper Gulf Regional Council, I look 
forward to the important tasks we have before us, 
of continuing to improve and enhance the Roper 
Gulf region to ensure the best quality of life for our 
communities, and of supporting and advocating for 
our people. 

I would like to acknowledge all of the hard work 
that was undertaken by the former Mayor, Judy 
MacFarlane and by former Councillors. I am 
committed to seeing the ideas and aspirations of the 
previous Elected Members continue to be a focus for 
the new term of Council, which is made up of both 
new and returning members.  

As a Council, we are dedicated to making decisions 
that lead to the establishment of a vibrant region 
with adequate services and infrastructure. The 
information collected in this Annual Report will help 
to guide our future decision making to ensure we are 
delivering on the priorities raised by residents and 
ratepayers and that we are meeting our expectations 
as a Council. 

The new Strategic Plan for 2022-27 will also be a 
key resource for decision making and for the future 
direction of the Council as we review and re-develop 
our goals, strategies and activities to ensure they 
meet community needs and help to achieve our 
vision. 

I am proud to serve such a great region and I look 
forward to seeing how, as a community, we can 
continue to work together towards a sustainable, 
viable and vibrant Council area. 

Tony Jack 

Incoming Mayor,  
Roper Gulf Regional Council 
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MESSAGE FROM THE  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Roper Gulf Regional Council 
has achieved many wonderful 
outcomes for our communities over 
2020/21 and although it’s been a 
year of change, we have continued 
to improve all aspects of what we 
do and providing the infrastructure 
to support our community needs.   

The most momentous shift has been from an 
organisation that is in a cycle of correcting the worst 
problems and acting as an adhocracy. We have 
finally, after 12 years of operation, driven ourselves 
to being an organisation lead by strategy, good 
needs-based planning and successful delivery of 
highly valued community services and infrastructure 
but there is still considerable work to go. 

On top of this during the year, we have continued 
to grow in a strong financial position in addition to 
excellent financial performance, however this has 
come at a cost to the services we provide – we 
experienced significant impacts of Covid-19 and the 
macroeconomic repercussions affecting our ability to 
employ staff across the entire region. This resulted 
in underspends in employee expenditure which 
impacted on the performance of some programs, 
however many Councils in the Northern Territory 
have experienced similar issues. This is certainly 
something we need to be wary of into the future and 
will be a focus of human resources strategies and 
performance monitoring.

To overcome these challenges, Council has 
literally ‘taken the bull by the horns’ with strategy 
development to lead us into the future, with the 
commitment of significant funding to undertake 
extensive community consultation to develop a 
Strategic Plan which will be delivered in the later part 
of 2021. This plan will be based on actual community 
needs and will provide the framework for our 
Council well into the future and ensure that we lead 
our region with commensurate local government 
services. The effect of this Strategic Plan will be felt 
over many years to come and the future road ahead 
is certainly very exciting for our Council. 

Roper Gulf Regional Council is one of the largest 
local governments in the Northern Territory. 
Within our region, we have the highest number of 
Indigenous and local employees and are passionate 
about employing local staff directly and utilising local 
businesses and organisations in everything we do. 
We endeavour to spend very little money outside 
of the region or the Territory, supporting locally 
whenever we can. The flow on effect of this helps to 
support local economies and sees each Roper Gulf 
community continue to grow and prosper.

During the year we also committed several millions 
of dollars towards a number of major roads projects 
including the Rocky Creek Bridge, Ngukurr Freight 
hub and other upgrades, but we also advocated 
for funding for roadworks projects that will occur 
in 2021/22 such as sealing of the entire Urapunga 
Community. Our year has seen some massive 
achievements and in reality we have delivered some 
very valuable community infrastructure mostly using 
local contractors and suppliers. 
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As usual, our services from Sport and Recreation 
programs to Aged Care, from the Community 
Development Program to the Australia Post 
contracts, continued to provide excellent customer 
services for our communities and were fundamental 
for ensuring the long term employment of 
Indigenous people. 

Most of all, without our staff sticking together, being 
one team and committing ourselves to delivering 
the best projects and services on the ground for 
our communities, we would not have achieved what 
we have during the year. This report is testament to 
their work, it’s a historic record of what each staff 
member has achieved and actively contributed to, 
leading to direct tangible outcomes. This is what 
makes local government great, this is what makes 
Roper Gulf Regional Council a great place to work 
and why we are valued for what we provide for our 
communities. 

In addition to all the great things our Council 
achieved during the financial year, we prepared for 
changes to Council’s governance structure with 
having to take on requirements of a new Local 
Government Act and preparations for General 
Council Elections in August 2021. We have taken on 
these changes in our stride and I would also like to 
express my gratitude to the outgoing Mayor, Deputy 
Mayor and Council who have been extremely 
supportive of leading our organisation through the 
year, making the tough decisions and setting us up 
for a bright future ahead. 

I am proud of our achievements in the past year, I am 
proud of our staff and their fantastic work and I’m 
excited for Roper Gulf Regional Council as it’s about 
to get better in 2021/22!

Marc Gardner 

Acting Chief Executive Officer,  
Roper Gulf Regional Council 
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Roper Gulf Regional 
Council area

Estimated resident 
population

Number of 
communities  

and towns

Number of wards

Largest communities 
by estimated resident 

population

Median age

Indigenous population 

Speaks language other 
than  

English at home

Most common 
language spoken

Number of Councillors

Key industries in  
the region

201,000  
square kilometres

6,505

14

5

Ngukurr 

1,149 

26

80%

70%

Kriol  

50%

13
Pastoral, agriculture, extractive 
industries, tourism and 
government services. The 
Council is one of the largest 
employers in the Region

Borroloola 

871
Numbulwar

723

These figures are all from the latest Census data in 2016 from the Australian 
Bureau of Statistics: https://www.abs.gov.au/census/find-census-data
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Our Vision

Roper Gulf Regional Council’s vision is to be 
Sustainable, Viable and Vibrant through:

• Service Delivery: be the provider of choice by 
meeting appropriate service standards;

• Governance: the role model for good governance;

• Leadership: identify, nurture, and promote 
excellence in leadership; 

• Relationships: growing relationships through 
community partnerships; 

• Investment Opportunities: a smart place to do 
business; 

• Engagement: listen, learn and respond; 

• People: employer of choice; and 

• Knowledge: planning and development based on 
knowledge of the region

Our Mission

Working as one towards a better future through 
effective use of all resources.

Our Values

Honesty – Equality – Accountability – Respect – Trust

As a Council, these five values are actively promoted, 
encouraged and recognised within the workplace. 
It is Council’s expectation that all Councillors and 
staff display these values as a minimum during the 
performance of their duties for the Council. These 
five values guide our thinking, our actions and our 
decision making in everything we do. Council strives 
to be a valued and trusted organisation by our 
communities and it is through practising these Values 
that we can achieve this. 

OUR VISION, MISSION AND VALUES 
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ROPER GULF  
REGIONAL COUNCIL 

Roper Gulf Regional Council delivers a wide range 
of municipal and community services and programs 
within one of the most spectacular and remote areas 
of the Northern Territory. The Council’s area spans 
over 201,000 square kilometres – almost three times 
the size of Tasmania – making Council’s operational 
footprint one of the largest in the Northern Territory. 

The regional boundary runs from the southern side 
of the Kakadu escarpment to the northern edge of 
the Barkly Tablelands, and from the western fringe 
of the Stuart Highway to the Gulf of Carpentaria and 
Queensland border. 

There are five Wards that make up the Roper Gulf 
region - Never Never, Numbulwar-Numburindi, 
Nyirranggulung, South West Gulf and Yugul Mangi.

This vast area is rich in biodiversity and boasts 
areas of tropical savannah, dry grasslands and open 
forest, with iron-rich eroded sandstone, limestone 
escarpments and low mesas dominating the 
landscape. The Roper Gulf region is dissected by 
large, ancient river systems including the Roper, Rose, 
McArthur, Robinson and Limmen rivers, all of which 
are reflected in our Council’s logo. 

More than 700 kilometres of coastline runs along 
the eastern edge of the Local Government Area, 
characterised by stunning beaches, mangrove 
swamps, river deltas, low coastal sea cliffs and islands. 

Roper Gulf Shire Council was formed 1 of July 2008 
from the amalgamation of a number of smaller 
Community Councils and previously unincorporated 
land. The organisation was renamed Roper Gulf 
Regional Council in January 2014. 
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PLANNING FRAMEWORK

In 2021-22, the Council will undertake a planning process for the 2022-27 Strategic Plan, involving extensive 
community consultation. The Council’s Strategic Plan sets the vision, mission, goals, strategies and key 
performance indicators of the Council for the years that follow. 

The primary role of Council, amongst other things is “to act as a representative, informed and responsible 
decision maker in the interests of its constituency; and to represent the interest of its constituency” (Section 
21 (1), Local Government Act 2019). The way the Council plans to undertake these responsibilities is expressed 
through a Strategic Plan. 

The Strategic Plan is extremely important in setting the framework for decision making and direction for 
Council. It will influence the long term and annual strategies of the Council and in turn will guide the regional 
plans, divisional plans and activity plans for all areas of the organisation. The Strategic Plan will be reviewed 
again in 2027 at its completion.  

The goals, strategies and activities that are reported on throughout this Annual Report were developed in 
Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-21. 

Visit www.ropergulf.nt.gov.au to view this Strategic Plan and all other public documents.

STRATEGIC PLAN 2022 - 2027

REGIONAL 
PLAN

Long Term Strategies
Asset 

Management 
Plan

Long Term 
Financial  

Plan

Annual Priorities and Projects

DIVISIONAL PLAN DIVISIONAL PLAN DIVISIONAL PLAN

ACTIVITY 
PLAN

ACTIVITY 
PLAN

ACTIVITY 
PLAN

ACTIVITY 
PLAN

ACTIVITY 
PLAN

Service Provision
Budget

Opportunities 
and  

Challenges

Community 
Priorities
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OUR PEOPLE
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At Roper Gulf Regional Council we are passionate 
about our people, both in our communities and in 
our workplace. Without capable and committed 
Councillors and staff, we could not deliver the 
extensive range of core, agency and commercial 
services that we do across all 14 of the remote 
communities and towns in our region and that is 
why our people are our most valuable asset.

OUR ELECTED MEMBERS

The fourth Roper Gulf Regional Council was sworn in on Wednesday 
29 September 2021 at its inaugural Ordinary Meeting of Council. At the 
meeting, South West Gulf Ward Councillor Tony Jack was appointed Mayor 
for the four-year term of Government and Never Never Ward Councillor 
Judy MacFarlane Deputy Mayor for a two-year term.

These are the 13 Elected Members of the fourth Roper Gulf Regional 
Council, sitting during which this Annual Report was adopted. The 13 
Elected Members who now represent the residents of the Roper Gulf  
region are:

Never Never Ward

Deputy Mayor Judy MacFarlane, Councillor Annabelle Daylight and 
Councillor Patricia Farrell

Numbulwar Numburindi Ward  

Councillor Edwin Nunggumajbarr and Councillor David Murrungun

Nyirranggulung Ward

Councillor Helen Lee, Councillor Selina Ashley and Councillor John 
Dalywater

South West Gulf Ward

Mayor Tony Jack, Councillor Samuel Evans and Councillor Gadrian Hoosan

Yugul Mangi Ward

Councillor Owen Turner and Councillor Jana Daniels

Photo taken at the Council Chambers in Katherine at the inaugural meeting of Council, Wednesday 
29 September 2021.  
Back row (left to right): Acting Chief Executive Officer Marc GARDNER, Cr. Edwin 
NUNGGUMAJBARR, Cr. David MURRUNGUN, Cr. John DALYWATER, Cr. Gadrian HOOSAN, Cr. 
Owen TURNER and Cr. Samuel EVANS Front row (left to right): Cr. Jana DANIELS, Cr. Annabelle 
DAYLIGHT, Cr. Selina ASHLEY, Mayor Tony JACK, Deputy Mayor Judy MacFARLANE, Cr. Helen LEE, 
and Cr. Patricia FARRELL



20 Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21

OUR COUNCILLORS 
2017/2018 – 2020/21

These are the 13 Elected Members of 
the third Roper Gulf Regional Council, 
sitting during which the reporting period 
of this Annual Report pertains.

The 13 Elected Members who 
represented the residents of the Roper 
Gulf region were:

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 
NEVER NEVER WARD

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 
NYIRRANGGULUNG 

WARD

Councillor Selina Ashley 
NYIRRANGGULUNG 

WARD

Councillor  
Annabelle Daylight 

NEVER NEVER WARD
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NYIRRANGGULUNG 
WARD

SOUTH WEST GULF 
 WARD

YUGUL  
MANGI  
WARD

NEVER NEVER 
WARD

NUMBULWAR-
NUMBURINDI 

WARD

Councillor Deanna Kennedy 
NYIRRANGGULUNG 

WARD

Councillor Edwin Nunggumajbarr 
NUMBULWAR NUMBURINDI  

WARD

Councillor Samuel Evans 
SOUTH WEST  
GULF WARD

Councillor  
Marlene Karkadoo 

SOUTH WEST  
GULF WARD

Councillor Don Garner 
SOUTH WEST  
GULF WARD

Councillor David Murrungun 
NUMBULWAR NUMBURINDI  

WARD

Councillor  
Ossie Daylight 

NEVER NEVER WARD

Councillor Owen Turner 
YUGUL MANGI  

WARD

Councillor Clifford Duncan 
YUGUL MANGI WARD
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

COUNCILLOCAL AUTHORITIES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CORPORATE SERVICES AND SUSTAINABILITY

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND ENGAGEMENT

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES AND PLANNING

Advocacy
Communications

Strategic Management and Planning
Governance

Major Projects

Financial Management and Planning
Corporate Information Services
Human Resource Management

Community Development Program
Sustainability

Community Services (including Aged Care and Crèche services)
Council Services

Community Safety (including Sport & Recreation Activities and 
Community Night Patrol)

Animal Control and Management
Community Engagement

Contract Management
Project Management

Waste Management and Compliance
Asset Management

Cemetery Management
Urban Planning and Design

FINANCE COMMITTEE

ROADS COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

COMMUNITY GRANTS 
COMMITTEE
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OUR SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

ACTING CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Marc Gardner 

ACTING GENERAL 
MANAGER CORPORATE 
SERVICES AND 
SUSTAINABILITY  
Dave Heron 

GENERAL MANAGER 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 
AND ENGAGEMENT  
Steven Sanderson 

GENERAL MANAGER 
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 
AND PLANNING 
Andreea Caddy 



24 Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21

COUNCIL COMMITTEES

Roper Gulf Regional Council has created Council committees to assist with the decision making process. These 
include a Finance Committee, an Audit Committee, Community Grants Committee and a Roads Committee. 

Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2019, a Council can establish a committee which is assigned 
functions of an executive or advisory nature. The Act allows a committee to have a wide range of functions, 
and the members of a committee may include people who are not Elected Members or Council staff. Any 
committee is subject to the control and direction of the Council.

Finance Committee

The Council has established a Finance Committee 
to assist in the oversight of the organisation’s 
finances and resources. Specifically, the committee 
undertakes the financial management roles of 
the Council in the months that the Council does 
not meet. The current membership of Finance 
Committee comprises: 

• Mayor 

• Deputy Mayor 

• 3 x Elected Members 

• Independent Member

The Finance Committee meets five times a year, on 
alternate months to Ordinary Meetings of Council. 
A full schedule of Finance Committee Meetings for 
the 2021-22 Financial Year can be found on the 
meetings page of our website 

Audit Committee

The Council has established the Audit Committee 
pursuant to the Local Government Act 2019 so as 
to monitor compliance by the council with proper 
standards of financial management and compliance 
by the council with these regulations and the 
Accounting Standards. The Audit Committee is an 
advisory committee and does not have executive 
powers or authority to implement actions in areas 
which management has responsibility, nor does it 
have any delegated financial responsibility. 

The Audit Committee does not have any 
management functions and is therefore 
independent from the Council’s executive team. 
The current membership of the Audit Committee 
comprises: 

• Independent Chairperson 

• Independent Member 

• 3 x Elected Members

Community Grants Committee

The Council has established a Community Grants 
Committee to act as the assessment panel 
for Roper Gulf Regional Council Community 
Grants Program applications, and to make 
recommendations to the Council on awarding 
community grant funding to eligible individuals 
and organisations. The current membership of the 
Committee comprises: 

• Mayor 

• Deputy Mayor 

• 3 x Elected Members 

The Community Grants Committee meets two to 
three times a year.

Roads Committee

The Roads Committee was established by Council 
to facilitate roads project development by 
reviewing all current and future proposed roads 
projects, and raising concerns and priorities to 
report to Council. The current membership of the 
Committee comprises: 

• Mayor 

• Deputy Mayor 

• 4 x Elected Members

Barunga Local Authority meeting
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LOCAL AUTHORITIES

Local Authorities have been formed to achieve integration and ensure the involvement of remote communities 
in the system of Local Government.

The Roper Gulf region has 12 Local Authorities and members of each Local Authority are appointed by the 
Council in accordance with Chapter 5 of the Local Government Act 2019. 

The role of the Local Authorities in the Roper Gulf region is to: 

• Provide advice to the Council on service delivery plans, including infrastructure requirements for 
communities and associated outstations, or local Region or wards, and to contribute to the development of 
Regional Business Plans; 

• Alert and advise the Council on new and emerging issues within the scope of Council activities; 

• Advise on specific Council, community and social projects that impact on the community or region; 

• Advise and support Council staff in the local implementation of the Regional Business Plan, particularly in the 
area of cross-cultural best practice in governance and service delivery; and

• Respond to identified community needs, if appropriate, by participating and organising activities such as 
community events, youth, community safety, housing advice and community planning and infrastructure 
development.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE  
2020-21 FINANCIAL YEAR
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Inaugural Robinson River Local  
Authority Meeting

Media Release, Friday 14 August 2020

On Thursday 6 August 2020 at 10:00am, the Robinson River Local Authority 
held its first meeting. Local authorities give people in regional and remote 
areas of the Northern Territory (NT) a strong voice in local government. At the 
Council’s July Ordinary meeting, 10 Community Members were appointed to 
sit on the Local Authority and to represent the voices of Robinson River. The 
inaugural meeting came after a 12 month process, working with the Northern 
Territory Government, the Mungoorbada Aboriginal Corporation and consulting 
with the Robinson River community. 
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Local Authority Project Comes 
to Life

Media Release, Thursday 14 January 2020

Roper Gulf Regional Council is pleased to announce 
that the community playground in Jilkminggan has 
been completed after three years of planning. The 
idea for the community playground was raised by 
local members at a Jilkminggan Local Authority 
meeting in 2017 and was jointly funded by the 
Jilkminggan Local Authority and Roper Gulf Regional 
Council. 

Local Authorities were formed to achieve integration 
and ensure the involvement of remote communities 
in the system of Local Government and Roper 
Gulf Regional Council have seen many benefits of 
this integration between Council and community 
members. Local Authority meetings focus on 
Council’s commitment to provide accessible and 
inclusive opportunities for residents to help shape 
decisions that affect their community directly. 

These meetings also provide an opportunity for local 
community members to give advice to the Council 
on service delivery plans, including infrastructure 
requirements for communities and to contribute 
to the development of Council’s Regional Plans. 
The Council’s commitment to ensuring community 
participation in decision-making at Local Authority 
meetings will be further strengthened in 2021, with 
six rounds of meetings scheduled to take place in all 
Roper Gulf communities. The Jilkminggan Playground 
is a result of this integration and Council look 
forward to continuing to work with Local Authorities 
on developing future projects in the Roper Gulf 
region.
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Roper Gulf Region Citizen of the Year Awards

Media Release, Thursday 28 January 2020

Roper Gulf Regional Council has announced the winners of the Citizen of the Year Awards for 2021 from 
participating communities. Each Roper Gulf community could nominate for three categories, Citizen of the Year, 
Young Citizen of the Year and Community Event of the Year. 

Madam Mayor Judy MacFarlane said “After the challenging year that 2020 was, facing a global pandemic and 
restricted events and tourism in our communities, what we saw was community residents showing up for each other 
by being kind, supportive and creative in the ways they could help one another. 

The Citizen of the Year Awards are a great way of recognising and thanking those residents and organisations who 
showed up for their community last year and were role models for both young and old as we all navigated the 
unknown nature of Covid19. 

I would personally like to congratulate and thank each award winner for their commitment to their community”. 

From Barunga, our Citizen of the Year Award 
Winners are: 

• Citizen of the Year – Anita Painter

• Young Citizen of the Year – Shanton (Shorty) Ladd

• Community Event of the Year – Arnhem Crows 
Sporting Association 

From Bulman, our Citizen of the Year Award 
Winners are: 

• Citizen of the Year – Lloyd Murray 

From Borroloola, our Citizen of the Year Award 
Winners are: 

• Citizen of the Year – Roslyn Kerr

• Community Event of the Year – Borroloola 
Amateur Race Club 

From Mataranka, Our Citizen of the Year Award 
Winners are: 

• Citizen of the Year – Des Barrit

• Young Citizen of the Year – Lance Wilson

• Community Event of the Year – Mataranka Fishing 
Sporting and Recreational Club

• Certificate of Achievement – Sue Edwards

• Certificate of Achievement – Moira Lanzarin 

From Numbulwar, our Citizen of the Year Award 
Winners are: 

• Citizen of the Year – Patricia Nundhirribala

• Young Citizen of the Year – Francesca Joshua
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Huge Success for Ngukurr Leak Reduction Project

Media Release, Wednesday 3 February 2021

Roper Gulf Regional Council would like to 
congratulate the Ngukurr community, for winning 
the 2020 Tidy Towns Sustainable Community 
Award for Water Conservation. The town’s water 
conservation success has been a result of Power 
and Water Corporation’s Ngukurr Leak Production 
Project, a joint project with the Department of Local 
Government, Housing and Community Development 
(DLGHCD) that located and repaired water leaks in 
Ngukurr. 

Through its not-for-profit subsidiary Indigenous 
Essential Services, this project enabled Power 
and Water to provide sustainable water supply to 
the Ngukurr community and support continual 
community growth. Investigations by Power and 
Water had identified that up to 80% of the 1.4M of 
water extracted from the bore field each day was 
being lost through leakages in the water network 
and customer side infrastructure. 

The project resulted in the reduction of leaks by 
approximately 50%, equating to savings of more 
than 6L per second. This means that the need for 
additional water infrastructure, such as bores and 
water storage tanks, has now been deferred for 
many years. The $3.3M project was also the winner 
of the 2020 Australian Water Association’s (AWA) 
Northern Territory ‘Infrastructure Project Innovation 
Award (Regional)’ at the NT Water in the Bush 
conference in 2020. Power and Water is committed 
to delivering positive Aboriginal outcomes through 
employment on Capital Infrastructure Projects. For 
the Ngukurr project, the Aboriginal Employment 
Target of 30% for contracts within the Northern 
Territory was exceeded with Aboriginal people 
averaging 40% of the workforce. 

“We have been pleased to collaborate with 
the people of Ngukurr to help provide 
a sustainable water supply and support 
community growth” 

Steven Porter, Executive General Manager Water 
Services, Power and Water Corporation. 

Roper Gulf Regional Council would like to thank 
Power and Water Corporation for their commitment 
to water conservation and sustainability in the 
Ngukurr community and the Department of Local 
Government, Housing and Community Development 
for providing funding for this project. 

“We would also like to thank all the wonderful 
residents of Ngukurr, who have shown a 
great level of support to Power and Water 
and to Council in their own ongoing water 
conservation and sustainability efforts around 
the community”

Madam Mayor Judy MacFarlane said.

  
Thea Griffin, previous Roper Manager Community Projects and 
Engagement with the Water Conservation Award
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Barunga Media Officer goes live on TEABBA

Social Media Post, Monday 22 February 2021

Meet Delma McCartney, our Media Officer in Barunga.

Every weekday from 8am-12pm, Delma provides important community announcements and a vibrant music 
selection to Barunga residents through the local radio station. 

Delma has been announcing on the local Barunga radio for over 10 years now and this week she has been 
given access to go live on the main TEABBA radio station where her voice will be heard by anyone listening to 
TEABBA across the Top End! 

This a great achievement and Council would like to congratulate Delma for her work in local radio. 

Tune in to TEABBA on Wednesday morning from 10am-11am to listen to Delma live! 

Find your frequency or stream the Live Broadcast on the TEABBA website - www.teabba.com.au.
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Roper Gulf Regional Council would like to thank 
everyone who was involved in the emergency 
evacuation of the Jilkminggan community on 
Thursday 25 February 2021. 

The decision was made by the Local Emergency 
Committee to evacuate 211 people from Jilkminggan 
as flood waters continued to rise and surround 
the community. Everyone from Jilkminggan was 
relocated into temporary accommodation at the 
town hall in Mataranka where 180 people stayed on 
Thursday and Friday night. 

Council staff who were on site to help with 
the evacuation said they were amazed by the 
extraordinary community response to the emergency 
event from both Jilkminggan and Mataranka 
residents. 

“Everyone who was evacuated from the 
Jilkminggan community did so with patience 
and cooperation” 

said Paul Wilson, Central Arnhem Council Services 
Manager for Roper Gulf Regional Council who was in 
Mataranka to help with the evacuation. 

“We were incredibly impressed by the response 
of residents, business owners and organisations 
in Mataranka who responded instantly to the 
emergency situation and helped in any way they 
could. “It was a great example of a neighbouring 
town offering their support, resources and time to 
make sure that the evacuation was done efficiently 
and that everyone who had been relocated to 

Mataranka felt safe and comfortable during their 
stay”, Paul said. 

Marc Gardner, Acting CEO for Roper Gulf Regional 
Council said “It was a really responsive effort by all 
agencies involved including the Police, Education and 
Health staff along with the Council staff who went 
above and beyond the call of duty to ensure the safe 
passage of all Jilkminggan residents. 

“We are particularly grateful to the volunteers and 
businesses of Mataranka and the Katherine Region, 
who opened up their generosity, providing assistance 
to ensure that Council facilities could safely 
accommodate Jilkminggan residents in Mataranka, as 
well as providing a range of support over the three 
days of the evacuation emergency. From helicopter 
observations to cooking meals, it truly was an 
outstanding community effort. 

“I am also extremely proud of all Council staff in both 
Jilkminggan and Mataranka who worked as a team 
during the emergency, demonstrating a high level 
of professionalism, capacity and practicability. With 
this support, it enabled the emergency evacuation to 
operate relatively smoothly.” 

All residents were safely repatriated back to  
the Jilkminggan community on Saturday 27 
February 2021. 

Extraordinary Community Response to Emergency Evacuation

Media Release, Thursday 4 March 2021
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Meet the new Jilkminggan Blues Committee! 

Social Media Post, Friday 12 March 2021

Thank you to everyone who attended the community meeting today in Jilkminggan to form a committee for the 
Jilkminggan Blues Football Club!

A lot of hard work has been done to get the club to this point and it was great to see so many members of the 
community gather today and show their support 

Now that the club has a committee, it will be able to start registering players, organising jumpers and starting 
training sessions to be ready for the competition! 

Congratulations to all of our new committee members who will do a great job! We can’t wait to see the 
Jilkminggan Blues up and running again.
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Official Opening Ceremony of 
the Rocky Creek Bridge

Media Release, Thursday 6 May 2021

The Official Opening Ceremony of the Rocky Creek 
Bridge will be held in Borroloola on Wednesday 19 
May 2021, from 12:00pm to 1:00pm. 

Residents of Borroloola and the surrounding region 
have enjoyed the benefits of the $6.7m bridge 
during the past La Niña wet season, following its 
completion in December 2020. The project was 
funded by all three tiers of government as well as 
the McArthur River Mine Community Benefits Trust, 
a strategic partnership that reflects the importance 
of adequate infrastructure to regional economic 
development, vitality, and resilience. 

Mayor Judy MacFarlane said the Rocky Creek 
Bridge, which is located on Robinson Road in 
Borroloola, provides vital links between one end of 
town and the other and is now a safer and more 
reliable freight link in the wet seasons.

“The Rocky Creek Bridge is a vital piece 
of infrastructure not only for daily freight 
movements but also residents in Borroloola 
and surrounding areas, who rely on this 
bridge for access daily. 

That is why it is so important that we 
celebrate the completion of this project with 
representatives from the funding partners, 
stakeholders, local businesses and residents 
of Borroloola,” 

said Mayor MacFarlane. 

The event will be held at the rest area adjacent to 
the Rocky Creek Bridge on Robinson Road, with 
speeches from Mayor Judy MacFarlane and elected 
representatives from each funding partner. 

Robinson Road will be closed at the Rocky Creek 
Bridge to all traffic, from 11:00am to 1:00pm, on 
Wednesday 19 May 2021, with traffic control in 
place to ensure the safety of attendees. The event 
will conclude with a community BBQ provided by 
Council staff and all members of the community 
are encouraged to join Council in celebrating the 
completion of this long awaited community asset.
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New Statues to be Unveiled at Never Never Festival

Media Release, Friday 7 May 2021

The new ‘We of the Never Never’ statues will be 
unveiled in Stan Martin Park at the Never Never 
Festival in Mataranka on Sunday 16 May 2021. The 
six statues depict the various characters of Jeanie 
Gunn’s book ‘We of the Never Never’ that was made 
into a movie in the 1980’s. 

The previous statues, which were regularly visited 
by tourists, had many cracks and parts of the 
statues were falling away or faded from the harsh 
Territory conditions. After an extensive consultation 
process with the Mataranka Local Authority, it was 
requested that these statues be replaced to reflect 
the significance of the town’s history and the quality 
of life in Mataranka. The project was funded by the 
Mataranka Local Authority and Roper Gulf Regional 
Council, who awarded the contract to construct the 
new statues to Gillie and Marc from Sydney NSW. 

The Never Never Festival will run from Friday 14 
May to Sunday 16 May in the town of Mataranka 
and is an event that embraces the diversity of the 
Never Never and celebrates Jeanie Gunn’s famous 
1908 novel, which was responsible for putting 
Mataranka on the international stage. Mayor Judy 
MacFarlane will officially unveil the new bronze 

statues in Stan Martin Park alongside very special 
guests, Florence Peters and Sabina Willy. Florence 
Peters is the daughter of Dolly Bonson who, as Bett 
Bett, featured in the novel ‘We of the Never Never’ 
and who’s character is one of the statues in Stan 
Martin Park. The second special guest is Sabina 
Willy, the actor who played the character of Bett 
Bett in the ‘We of the Never Never’ movie, released 
in 1982. 

Mayor Judy MacFarlane is honoured to be able to 
stand alongside Florence and Sabina to unveil the 
new statues. 

“The Mataranka Community and Council staff are 
very excited about the completion of this long 
standing project.

“This is a special event made even more special by 
having two significant people involved in the ‘We of 
the Never Never’ story such as Florence and Sabina 
attend”, said Mayor Judy MacFarlane.

The unveiling of the statues will take place at 9:00am 
in Stan Martin Park after the Bush Chapel Service.
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The Sister Centre Project

Social Media Post, June 2021

Council’s Crèche staff have been working closely 
with Early Childhood Australia to deliver The Sister 
Centre Project in our region.

The aim of the project is to connect Childhood 
Educators from both urban and remote centres 
and take each person on a reflective journey which 
recognises the importance of cultural knowledge and 
its benefits for our children.

In June, staff from community were given the 
opportunity to visit Katherine Centres to learn about 
their philosophy and programming and educators 
from Katherine travelled to Beswick to learn about 
community culture and programs.

In Beswick, educators participated in an art tour at 
the Djilpin Arts Centre which involved:

• Walking on Country

• Collecting honey bag

• Collecting Pandanus, drying and dying them and 
then learning how to weave a basket

• Traditional painting using the fine grass plant

• Dream time stories

• Tour of the Art Museum

• Hike to Beswick Falls with Daryl as the tour guide

The project has built strong and lasting connections 

between urban and remote educators in the 
Katherine and Roper Gulf regions. Congratulations to 
all staff involved!

Mulggan Camp Community 
Veggie Garden

Social Media Post, Tuesday 2 June 2021

How deadly is the Mulggan Camp community garden 
looking 

Participants in the Mataranka Community 
Development Program (CDP) started this garden a 
few months ago and are already seeing great results! 

The garden beds were made from completely 
recycled bush timber that was cut down in a recent 
Mataranka CDP chainsaw training. Shout out also to 
the Jilkminggan CDP crew who have been travelling 
to Mataranka to assist with the tree felling as well. 

Pictured below is CDP participant Johnny Billy, who 
is very proud to be involved in the development of 
the Mulggan Camp community garden. 
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New Coaches Boxes at the 
Barunga AFL Oval

Social Media Post, Monday 7 June 2021

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee showed us the new 
Coaches Boxes at the Barunga AFL Oval today!

These were funded by the Barunga Local Authority as 
part of Council’s commitment to improving sport and 
recreation facilities throughout our communities.

The project was undertaken by Jawoyn Contracting 
who have done a terrific job! It was great to be able 
to support local Indigenous industries, community 
businesses and local employment for the construction 
of this project. 

Ready for use at the Barunga Festival this weekend.

Have you seen the new 
storyboards in the Never  
Never Museum?

Social Media Post, Wednesday 9 June 2021

Installed just before the Never Never Festival in mid-
May this year, these storyboards tell the history of 
Mataranka as you move from right to left.

From the dreamings and traditional beliefs of the 
town’s first people - the Yangman and Mangarrayi 
Aborigines through to today’s Council, people, 
technology and tourism, there is a lot of history told 
on these storyboards making them a must-see when 
you visit Mataranka! 

Completion of the Ngukurr 
Freight Hub

Social Media Post, Friday June 25 2021 

We are excited to see the Ngukurr Freight hub 
completed with the lighting at the hub now installed. 
The transport hub is now ready for use and is open 
to traffic. Heavy vehicles are now advised to use the 
facility to load, unload and secure the goods and 
services.
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REPORT ON COUNCIL 
PERFORMANCE 
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DELIVERY OF TOWN PRIORITIES 

Each community within the Roper Gulf Region is unique. Town Priorities 
give the members of these communities the opportunity to express what is 
important to them and the areas in which they would like to  
see improvement. 

Roper Gulf Regional Council has consulted with the Local Authorities of 
each Roper Gulf community and have established a list of Town Priorities 
related to core, agency and advocacy services. These priorities are reported 
to Local Authorities on a regular basis and will be captured in each Local 
Authority Precinct Plan, of which are currently being developed. The 
Council is committed to working with Local Authorities and community 
members to engage the Australian and Northern Territory Governments 
and other stakeholders, to support these Town Priorities. 

For the latest summary of the Town Priorities, please see the Regional Plan 
2021/2022 that is available on our website.

OUTSTATIONS AND HOMELANDS 

Outstations serviced within the Roper  
Gulf region are:

Serviced from Bulman and 
Katherine 

• Barrapunta 

• Baghetti 

• Mount Catt 

Serviced from Katherine 

• Jodetluk (Gorge Camp) 

• Werenbun 

Serviced from Mataranka and 
Katherine 

• Mulggan Camp 

Serviced from Ngukurr and 
Katherine 

• Badawarrka 

• Costello 

• Kewulyi 

• Mole Hill 

• Nulawan
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There are approximately 300 people living across all of the Roper Gulf 
region outstations in 43 dwellings, with a further 60 outstation dwellings 
currently vacant. 

The 300 residents are not evenly distributed across the outstations - Mulggan Camp has approximately 60 
residents with up to 150 transient residents at times, Mount Catt has approximately 15 residents, Jodetluk has 
approximately 40 residents, Kewuyli approximately 20 residents and Werenbun approximately 40 residents, 
with an average across the region of 5.4 residents per outstation. 

Significant seasonal population variations occur in the small- to medium-sized outstations restricted wet 
weather access. In partnership with the Northern Territory Department of the Chief Minister and Cabinet,  
the Council provides basic core services to outstations and homelands, including: 

Municipal and Essential Services 

Operational funding received by the Council covers repairs and maintenance, minor works and general 
operational costs of the delivery of municipal and essential services. Municipal services primarily include road 
and aerodrome maintenance, waste disposal, landscaping and dust control in common areas, fire breaks, dog 
control programs, environmental health activities and other municipal services. Essential services activities 
primarily are concerned with electricity, water and the operation and maintenance of sewerage systems.

Housing Maintenance Services

This assists homeland residents to live in a safe and healthy environment. Funding is used for the direct costs 
associated with undertaking urgent and planned repairs and maintenance of dwellings. 

Home Extra Allowance 

This is an annual $5200 per-dwelling grant applied for by the homeland resident (who meets the eligible 
criteria) and allows families to improve living conditions on their homelands. Funding will be spent on identified 
repairs and maintenance of the dwelling, particularly for issues that ensure a safe and secure environment for 
families. 

Municipal and Essential Services Special Purpose Grants 

This is capital infrastructure funding to assist service providers with the delivery of municipal and essential 
services in homelands where the cost to deliver the services is beyond the capacity of the Municipal and 
Essential Services Program annual grant.

Commercial Services

Project details Responsibility, Stakeholder  
or Partners

Status as of 30 July, 2021

Municipal Essential Services:                                                 
Badawarrka, Baghetti, Barrapunta, Costello, Jodetluk, Kewyuli, 
Mole Hill, Mount Catt, Nulawan, Werenbun & Mulggan Town 
Camp

Department of Territory 
Families, Housing and 
Communities

Budgeted - Ongoing services being provided to 
the Outstations as per contractual obligations

Housing Maintenance Services:                                                 
Badawarrka, Baghetti, Barrapunta, Costello, Jodetluk, Kewyuli, 
Mole Hill, Mount Catt, Nulawan, Werenbun & Mulggan Town 
Camp 

Department of Territory 
Families, Housing and 
Communities 

Budgeted - Ongoing services being provided to 
the Outstations as per contractual obligations

Home Extra Allowance:                                                 Badawarrka, 
Baghetti, Jodetluk, Kewyuli, Mount Catt, Werenbun

Department of Territory 
Families, Housing and 
Communities 

Budgeted - Ongoing services being provided to 
the Outstations as per contractual obligations
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Municipal Essential Services Special Purpose Grant: Approved

Project details Responsibility,  
Stakeholder or Partners

Status as of 30 July, 2021

Baghetti - Install Boundary fence, Generator Shed and Solar Light Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Budgeted - Project in progress

Mount Catt - Upgrade old septic tank and system at House 3 Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Budgeted - Project in progress

Werenbun - Install UV water filtration system Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Budgeted  - Project Completed

Kewyuli - Install compound fence Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Budgeted - Project in progress

Municipal Essential Services Special Purpose Grant: Awaiting Approval

Project details Responsibility,  
Stakeholder  or Partners

Status as of 30 July, 2021

Badawarrka
• 120v Stand Alone Solar System 
• Solar Light 
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Costello
• 24v Stand Alone Solar System
• Solar Light
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Mole Hill
• 120v Stand Alone Solar System
• Solar Light
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Nulawan
• 48v Stand Alone Solar System 
• Solar Light
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Werenbun
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Baghetti
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)
• Solar Light

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Mount Catt
• Cemetery Fence
• Construct communal gathering area
• Purchase 38HP Diesel 4x4 TractorSolar light                                                                                   
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist) 

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced

Kewyuli
• Water Investigation (Water Specialist)
• Solar Light

Department of Territory Families, Housing 
and Communities 

Funding to be sourced
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GRANT FUNDING 

Council receives significant funding from the Federal and Northern Territory Governments and philanthropic 
organisations which support the delivery of essential infrastructure, community services and special projects. 
Council acknowledges the below organisations for funding provided in the 2020-21 financial year. 

ACTIVTY 
NO.

LEVEL OF 
GOVERNMENT

FUNDING PROGRAM ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION $ AMOUNT 
 (GST EXCL)

106 Territory Financial Assistance Grant (General 
Purpose)

General purpose financial assistance entitlement.  2,021,744.00 

106 Territory Northern Territory Operational Subsidy To assist with the provision of local government services in 
Larrimah.

 9,000.00 

106 Territory Northern Territory Operational Subsidy To assist with the maintenance of the Elsey Cemetery in 
Mataranka.

 2,000.00 

106 Territory Northern Territory Operational Subsidy To assist with the provision of local government services.  4,455,940.00 

106 Territory Indigenous Jobs Development Funding To assist with off-setting the cost of employing Indigenous 
staff within Council.

 1,601,000.00 

138 Territory Local Authority Project Funding To provide Local Authorities the financial capacity to 
undertake priority community projects.

 876,200.00 

164 Territory Special Community Assistance and 
Local Employment

Local Emergency Management  226,646.00 

171 Commonwealth Naidoc Week Grants Naidoc Week Grants Activity Program funding  10,000.00 

200 Territory Financial Assistance Grant (Roads 
Maintenance)

To assist with roads maintenance and upgrades.  1,105,099.00 

322 Territory Municipal, Essential and Housing 
Maintenance Services

To deliver urgent and routine repairs and maintenance of 
Outstation houses across the Region.

 169,065.00 

323 Territory Municipal, Essential and Housing 
Maintenance Services

To deliver urgent and routine repairs and maintenance of 
Outstation houses across the Region.

 555,139.00 

324 Territory Outsations Capital Structures To improve community infrastructure and local government 
service delivery across the Region.

 161,362.39 

325 Territory Home Extra Allowance To upgrade remote dwellings, increase living spaces, and 
make work areas more accessible.

 224,109.70 

342 Commonwealth Indigenous Employment Initiative For the employment of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
People for Commonwealth funded Aged Care Services.

 663,138.00 

344 Commonwealth Commonwealth Home Support 
Programme

In-home support for frail older people.  996,912.61 

346 Commonwealth Indigenous Broadcasting Programme To provide Indigenous community radio broadcasting and 
address the broadcasting needs of Indigenous people living 
the Region.

 398,580.00 

347 Commonwealth Community Child Care Fund To operate crèche's in Beswick, Manyallaluk, and 
Jilkminggan.

 1,398,809.00 

348 Territory Public Library Funding To provide public library services for the local community.  161,902.00 

349 Commonwealth School Nutrition Programme To provide breakfast and lunch five days per week during 
school days at Bulman and Manyullaluk.

 648,828.00 
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ACTIVTY 
NO.

LEVEL OF 
GOVERNMENT

FUNDING PROGRAM ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION $ AMOUNT 
 (GST EXCL)

401 Commonwealth Community Safety Programme (Night 
Patrol)

To improve community safety and provide conflict and 
dispute resolution in Barunga, Beswick, Borroloola, Bulman, 
Jilkminggan, Manyallaluk, Mataranka, Minyerri, Ngukurr, 
Numbulwar, and Robinson River.

 3,121,142.00 

403 Commonwealth Outside School Hours Care Programme To contribute to the operational costs of approximately 
child care and early learning and school aged care services 
in Jilkminggan and Beswick.

 187,795.24 

404 Commonwealth Indigenous Sport and Recreation 
Programme

To increase the active participation and employment of 
Indigenous Australians in sport and active recreation 
activities in Bulman, Beswick, Manyallaluk, Barunga, 
Jilkminggan, Ngukurr, Numbulwar, Borroloola, and 
Mataranka.

 676,294.00 

407 Territory Remote Sport Program To conduct  remote sport activities and organised 
competitions.

 246,637.00 

414 Territory Youth Engagement and Education To support treatment and care options for clients and their 
families affected by volatile substance abuse.

 59,048.00 

415 Commonwealth Indigenous Youth Reconnect 
Programme

To provide support services to reconnect disengaged youth 
in Ngukurr, Numbulwar, and Borroloola with education, 
training, and/ or employment.

 995,700.00 

430 Territory Alcohol Action Initiative Robinson River and Ngukurr Playground  60,000.00 

431 Territory Special Purpose Grant To revitalise Urapunga community.  228,382.00 

462 Territory Roads to Recovery Rocky Creek Bridge (complete)  1,400,000.00 

462 McArthur  
River Mines

Roads to Recovery Rocky Creek Bridge (complete)  1,400,000.00 

462 Commonwealth Roads to Recovery Rocky Creek Bridge (complete)  3,772,285.00 

463 Territory Master Plan Ngukurr Sports and 
Recreation Precinct

Roper Gulf Master Plan Ngukurr Sports and Recreation 
Precinct

 51,600.00 

464 Territory Remote Ovals and Infrastructure 
Upgrades Program

To upgrade the oval at Robinson River.  500,000.00 

480 Territory Remote Ovals and Infrastructure 
Upgrades Program

To design and construct multipurpose sports courts in 
Borroloola.

 400,000.00 

480 Philanthropic Community Benefits Trust To design and construct multipurpose sports courts in 
Borroloola.

 1,500,000.00 

480 Territory Remote Ovals and Infrastructure 
Upgrades Program

To design and construct a cyclone shelter at the 
multipurpose sports courts in Borroloola.

 5,000,000.00 

484 Territory Black Spot Program To to upgrade Anyula Street in Borroloola.  533,577.00 

485 Territory Regional Economic Infrastructure Fund Upgrade and improvement of the Ngukurr freight hub  1,000,000.00 

485 Commonwealth National Stronger Regions Fund Upgrade and improvement of the Ngukurr freight hub  499,750.00 

490 Territory Regional Economic Infrastructure Fund To construct waste management facility in Numbulwar  580,000.00 

491 Territory BBRF - Infrastructure Stream Upgrade and improvement of the Borrroloola Government 
Business Hub

 978,714.00 

495 Territory Local Government Strategic 
Infrastructure Fund

To design and construct the Mataranka Regional 
Community Hub.

 500,000.00 

497 Territory Special Purpose Grant To install public ablutions in Bulman, Mataranka, and 
Borroloola.

 200,000.00 

499 Territory Direct source funding arrangement To contruct an emergency staging area in Ngukurr.  500,000.00 
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COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM

Roper Gulf Regional Council runs a Community Grants Program to support different projects within the region. 
These grants are used to strengthen local culture, economy, family or the environment. Grant applications are 
usually called for twice a year through advertisements in local media and on the Council website.

Individuals can seek a minor grant of up to $1,000 and incorporated organisations can seek a major grant  
of up to $3,000. Up to four funding rounds are conducted each year. The full list of 2020-21 recipients is 
tabled below:

Grantee Funding Round Project Description Amount (GST 
Exclusive)

Animal Management in Rural and Remote 
Indigenous Communities

2 Animal care in Mulgann Camp. $3,000

Isolated Children’s Parents’ Association 2 To deliver sports camp for isolated children and 
Mataranka school students.

$3,000

Mataranka School 2 Purchase and install a laundry sink in the Preschool/FaFT 
room at Mataranka school.

$2603.70

AFL NT 3 AFL Carnival – Barunga Festival $3,000

Arnhem Crows Sporting Association 
Incorporated

3 The Pride of Arnhem. New supporter shirts 
incorporating our new club sponsors.

$3,000

Artback NT 3 Malandarri Festival 2021 $1,000

Individual 3 Kriol Awareness Course $3,000

Beswick School 3 Sport NT Australian Football 12 years and Under 
Championships

$3,000

Circulanation 3 Urapunga Arts and Op-shop stalls at Barunga Festival $2,964

Mataranka Fishing Sporting and Recreation Club 3 Territory Day Fireworks $3,000

Individual 3 Kriol Awareness Course $1,000

Jilkminggan School 3 Round 3 2020-21 $2,300

Moriarty Foundation John Moriarty Football (JMF) & Indi Kindi Programs $3,000

Roper River Landcare Group 3 Never Never Neem free by 2023 (Mataranka) $3,000

Yugul Mangi Development Aboriginal 
Corporation

3 Ngukurr Bulldogs Senior Men Football Team $3,000

Yugul Mangi Development Aboriginal 
Corporation

3 Women's Basketball Competition at the 2021 Barunga 
Festival

$3,000

$42,848
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LOCAL AUTHORITY PROJECT FUNDING

Community Completed 2020-21 Planned 2021-22

Barunga Basketball Court upgrades
Library furniture
Oval scoreboard repairs

Beswick Solar Lights Shade structure over playground

Borroloola Tap at Cemetery New Airport Toilet Block

Bulman Sport & Recreation Hall Renovations
Public Ablution Block on Highway

Manyallaluk BBQ Area
AFL Goal Posts

Playground Soft fall

Jilkminggan Solar Lights
Playground Shade Structure

Mataranka Stan Martin Park Statues
Cemetery Arch & Gates

Ngukurr New Basketball Court
Sports Hall Upgrades
Town Beautification

Numbulwar Airport Toilet

Urapunga Cemetery Gates
Welcome Sign

Robinson River AFL Goal Posts



REPORT ON  
COUNCIL GOALS
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REPORT ON COUNCIL GOALS

As part of our commitment to transparent and accountable service delivery, 
the following tables report on the progress of Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) against the strategies outlined in the Roper Gulf Regional Council 
2018-21 Strategic Plan.

This report on Council goals provides the community and other stakeholders 
with a comprehensive listing of identified KPIs and assessment of whether 
they were met or not met.

The four goals that make up Roper Gulf Regional Council’s Strategic Plan are 
vastly different in the outcomes they target, yet they are all similar in the 
fact that they align with Council’s vision of a sustainable, viable and vibrant 
Council region. 

Goal 1: 
Good Governance 

Goal 2: 
Strengthen the quality of life in the 
Roper Gulf Region

Goal 3: 
To protect and care for our physical 
environment

Goal 4: 
To support training and employment 
in remote communities
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GOAL 1: GOOD GOVERNANCE 

Council provides strong leadership through robust governance, responsible financial management, strategic 
corporate planning and operational delivery. 

Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

1.1

Council decisions based 
on community inclusion 
and consultation

1.1.1 

Facilitate local decision 
making through 
Elected Members, 
Local Authorities and 
stakeholders

Ensure opportunities for Local 
Authorities to contribute to 
Council decision making.

• Ensuring Community 
Priorities are included in 
Regional Plan

• Refer relevant Council items 
to Local Authorities for 
comment prior to adoption

% of scheduled LA 
meetings held

Jilkminggan: 71.43% 
Mataranka: 100% 
Borroloola: 71.43% 
Robinson River: 57.14% 
Beswick: 71.43% 
Manyallaluk: 57.14% 
Barunga: 100% 
Bulman: 28.57% 
Minyerri: 85.71% 
Ngukurr: 71.43% 
Urapunga: 57.14% 
Numbulwar: 85.71%

# of matters referred 
to Local Authorities for 
consultation

90 (including project 
consultation, budget 
consultation, town priority 
consultation and other 
agency requirements)

1.1.2 

Provide high-level support 
to Local Authorities and 
community engagement

High quality support is provided 
to Local Authorities to facilitate 
informed decision making.

• Timely provision of high 
quality Local Authority 
meeting agendas and minutes

Maximise Community 
Engagement through:

• Providing opportunities for 
community consultation

Publicising news relating to the 
activities and actions within 
the Council through website 
publications and Social Media

Minimum of 6 Local 
Authority Meetings per 
year in each community

Jilkminggan: 4/6 
Mataranka: 6/6 
Borroloola: 4/6 
Robinson River: 3/6 
Beswick: 4/6
Manyallaluk: 3/6
Barunga: 6/6
Bulman: 1/6
Minyerri: 5/6
Ngukurr: 4/6
Urapunga: 3/6
Numbulwar: 5/6

Minimum of 2 
Community Meetings per 
year in Larrimah and Daly 
Waters

Completed.

Larrimah: 100%

Daly Waters: 100%

1.1.3 

Undertake annual 
Community Satisfaction 
Survey, and public 
consultation on Regional 
and Strategic Plans

• Undertake annual Community 
Satisfaction Survey 

• Undertake Community 
Meetings in Larrimah and 
Daly Waters communities

• Ensure Town Priorities are 
included in Regional Planning 
process

Community Satisfaction 
Survey completed in 
13/15 Communities

Zero community satisfaction 
surveys conducted

2 Community Meetings 
held in Larrimah and Daly 
Waters/year

Completed

Town Priority report 
included in Local 
Authority Agendas

Completed (reports 
presented in at least two 
agendas per Local Authority 
throughout the financial 
year)
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

1.2 

Best-practice 
governance by Elected 
Members, Local 
Authority Members and 
Council Staff

1.2.1 

Continual improvement in 
the governance capacity 
of Elected Members and 
staff through ongoing 
training and professional 
development

• Development and 
implementation of Elected 
and Appointed member 
training plan

• Revise Local Authority 
Handbook to complement 
training for Local Authority 
Members and support local 
leadership, community 
development and financial 
awareness

• Develop an Elected Member 
handbook (Councillors)

# Elected and Local 
Authority Members 
trained (>90%)

Not completed (mandatory 
training to be implemented 
following Local Government 
Elections from August 2021)

Local Authority 
Handbook updated and 
distributed annually

Completed

Elected Member 
Handbook completed and 
elected members trained

Completed

1.2.2 

Revise Local Authority 
Handbook to complement 
training for Local 
Authority Members and 
support local leadership, 
community development 
and financial awareness

Undertake a revision of the 
Local Authority Handbook

Revision of Local 
Authority Handbook 
taken to Council

Completed

1.2.3 

Continued development 
and implementation of 
organisational policy that 
meets contemporary 
governance practice

Council Policy Review 
Committee (internal) conducts 
regular reviews of policies

Policy review committees 
>3/year

Not completed (a number of 
new policies are awaiting the 
new Council to adopt them 
in late 2021)

1.2.4 

Establish Local Authorities 
in Daly Waters, Larrimah 
and Robinson River

Robinson River Local Authority 
has been established in 2020.  

Council to assess need for Local 
Authorities in Larrimah and Daly 
Waters

Completion of evidence 
based needs assessment 
for Larrimah and Daly 
Waters Local Authorities

Completed (no Local 
Authority is substantiated)
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

1.3 

Quality people

1.3.1 

Recruit, develop and 
retain a workforce that 
is resilient and able to 
deliver the strategic goals 
of Council

Development and 
Implementation of HR Plan

Implement Performance Review 
Process that ensures alignment 
with Organisational Objectives

Production of a HR Plan 
completed by August 
2021

Not completed

Performance 
management framework 
reviewed and improved 
by 31 March 2022

Not completed

1.3.2 

Develop work conditions 
that meet staff 
expectations for work-life 
balance, and take into 
consideration behavioural 
trends and contemporary 
work ethics

Development and 
Implementation of HR Plan

Strategies to be included 
in HR plan

Not completed

1.3.3 

Provide comprehensive 
induction to all new staff, 
including cross-cultural 
awareness training

Inductions for 2x Communities 
per year at minimum, HR 
inductions are done as required 
and Cross Cultural training done 
annually at a minimum

100% new employees 
completely inducted 
with HR, WHS and 
Cultural Awareness 
within 3-6 months of 
commencement

Inductions conducted with 
new employees regularly

No cultural awareness 
delivered

1.3.4 

Strive to achieve best 
practice in work, health 
and safety

Work Health and Safety 
Committee to conduct regular 
reviews of Work Health and 
Safety Matters and report to 
Council

Reduction in Lost Time 
Injury hours >5%/year

Work Health and Safety 
Committee meets quarterly

Reduction in lost time due 
to physical injury > 5% 
evidenced

No increase in 
compensation claims 
from previous year for 
avoidable incidences

Workers Compensation 
claims for avoidable 
incidents have increased 
from two to four

1.4 

Effective Council 
advocacy on priority 
issues

1.4.1 

Develop strong 
partnerships with other 
tiers of Government 
and other stakeholders 
through regular 
communication, 
collaboration and 
coordination 

Develop a Community 
Engagement Plan which is 
specific to communication, 
collaboration and coordination 
with External and Internal 
Stakeholder

Delivery of Community 
Engagement Plan

Not complete

Attendance at Big Rivers 
Regional Coordination 
Committee meetings (6/
year)

Council has been 
represented at all meetings 
during 2020/21

1.4.2 

Advocate to other tiers 
of Government and other 
stakeholders on behalf of 
communities in the Roper 
Gulf Local Government 
Area

Town Priorities requiring 
advocacy are incorporated into 
a Community Engagement Plan 
and reported at each Local 
Authority and Council meeting

# of meetings and 
correspondence with 
stakeholders in CEO 
report, including Director 
activity

Council’s CEO has attended 
most Local Authorities in 
2021 particularly where 
Town Priorities were 
consulted

1.4.3

Through community 
consultation ensure 
community priorities are 
identified in Council’s 
business planning process

Annual review of Town Priorities 
presented to each Local 
Authority 

Town Priorities are a standard 
agenda item

Town Priorities are 
included in the Regional 
Plan

Completed
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

100% of Local Authority 
agendas include a Town 
Priorities report as 
part of Regional Plan 
development process

Completed

1.5 

Organisational 
sustainability through 
responsible financial 
management

1.5.1 

Manage Council’s 
business based on 
sustainable financial, asset 
and operational strategies 
to increase opportunities 
for growth and reduce 
inefficiencies

Develop Long Term Financial 
Plan incorporating long term 
asset plans, community plans 
to support Council’s strategic 
objectives

Regular Reporting to Finance 
Committee on Council’s 
Sustainability Ratio

Develop Strategic Investment 
Plan to maximise returns on 
current strategic investments

Complete Operational Plans for 
all Directorates’ activities

Delivery of Long Term 
Financial Plan

Long term financial plan 
delivered with the annual 
budget

Delivery of Asset 
Management Plan

Not completed due to the 
undertaking of an asset 
audit in early 2021 and 
re-evaluation of assets in 
mid-2021 which an Asset 
Management Plan relies on. 
This is to be completed in 
2021/22

Monthly reports to 
Council / Finance 
Committee to include 
ratios

Monthly financial reports 
delivered at each Council 
and Finance Committee 
Meeting

Deliver Strategic 
Investment Plan to 
Council

Investment Committee 
established to provide advice 
to Finance Committee

Activity Plans for each 
business unit completed 
by 30 May annually

Operational Plans completed 
for:

Finance

Information Technology

Workshop

CDP

1.5.2 

Facilitate ongoing training 
for Elected Members on 
financial management 
within the scope of Local 
Government

Provide at least one financial 
management training and 
development session to Elected 
Members per Financial Year

# of Elected Members 
trained.

0 (deferred due to other 
Council priorities)

# of sessions held. 0 (deferred due to other 
Council priorities)
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

1.5.3 

Maintain legislative 
compliance through 
regular internal and 
independent audits, 
compliance checks and 
reviews

Implement Organisational Risk 
Management Strategy through:

• Develop Risk Management 
Framework

• Review and promote Risk 
Management Plan on regular 
basis 

• Development and 
Implementation of Internal 
Audit Plan (against legislative 
and policy compliance)

• Regular Financial Audits

• Promote risk recognition

Deliver Unqualified Audit 
Report

Unqualified Audit Report 
delivered for year ended 30 
June 2020

Implement Internal Audit 
Program

Not completed

Risk assessment training 
for all staff

Not completed

1.5.4 

Develop and implement 
a long-term asset plan for 
Council infrastructure

Develop Assets Management 
Plan for fleet, buildings and 
roads (10 year Civil and Capital 
Works Plan)

Review annually in line 
with budget review

Asset audit completed in 
early 2021 with the data 
to be incorporated into an 
Asset Management Plan.

Five year Fleet Replacement 
Plan prepared

1.5.5 

Utilise a community 
development approach 
to establish service plans 
and infrastructure relating 
to demographics and 
community needs

Development of Service Plan for 
each location

# of Service plans 
achieved

Draft Operational Plans in 
place for most locations/
communities to be finalised 
with the recommencement 
of Local Authority meetings 
after 2021 Council elections

90% of Service 
Plans completed by 
30 September 2021

Activity Plans prepared for 
Alcohol & Other Drugs, 
Community Night Patrol, 
Sport & Rec/ School Holiday 
programs, Aged Care, Crèche 
and Waste Management and 
Resource Recovery

1.6 

Innovative, 
contemporary 
communication

1.6.1 

Develop an adaptable 
communications strategy 
that meets community 
expectation and need, 
and reflects current 
trends in information 
delivery

Create Communication 
Strategy part of, and linked to 
Community Engagement Plan

Conduct yearly analysis of 
Communication Strategy

Completed

1.6.2 

Improve communications 
on decisions of Council 
that directly impact 
communities

Council decisions are 
communicated to community 
stakeholders following each 
meeting

100% of relevant Council 
decisions communicated 
in accordance with 
applicable law

100%

1.6.3 

Undertake regular 
monitoring of 
Communications Strategy 
to ensure outcome is 
being met

Report quarterly to Council 
the implementation of 
Communication Strategy

Conduct yearly analysis of 
Communication Strategy

Completed
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

1.7 

Contribute to improved 
community planning and 
design

1.7.1 

Influence governments 
planning mechanisms to 
overcome poor urban 
design in communities

Council seeks to engage NTG on 
all planning decisions on Roper 
Gulf communities

100% of planning issues 
are raised with Council

100% of all development 
applications forwarded 
to Council by NTG were 
responded to with council 
recommendations

GOAL 2: STRENGTHEN QUALITY OF LIFE 

Council provides safe, strong and vibrant communities through building participation, contributing to safe and 
harmonious communities, and promoting economic development opportunities.

Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve 
strategy

KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

2.1 

Increase community 
participation in delivery 
of Agency Services 

2.1.1 

Delivery of programs for 
feasible remote agency 
services that Council has the 
capacity to deliver

Develop operational plans 
and business cases for 
all agency services (Aged 
Care, Community Safety, 
Sport and Recreation, 
Crèches and Youth Services, 
Libraries)

Annual operational plans 
updated/completed 31 
July

Aged Care: Not completed
Community Safety:  
Not completed
Sport and Recreation:  
Not completed
Crèche: Not completed
Youth Services:  
Not completed
Libraries: Not completed

<5% underspend on all 
programmes. 

Aged Care: 20% underspend
Community Safety: 2% 
underspend
Sport and Recreation: 22% 
underspend
Crèche: 18% underspend
Youth Services: 14% 
underspend
Libraries: 4% overspend 

Ensure high quality and 
compliant Community 
Service delivery in all 
communities:

Reviewing service delivery 

and compliance in all sites

Working closely with 
stakeholders to ensure 
positive outcomes for the 
Community

Ensure Quality and 
Compliance Audit is 
undertaken 

All service delivery and 
compliance reviews are 
completed within the 
contractual timeframes

Aged Care: Completed
Community Safety: 
Completed
Sport and Recreation: 
Completed
Crèche: Completed
Youth Services: Completed
Libraries: Completed
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve 
strategy

KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

Maximise local community 
members capability to 
deliver community services 
by:

• Maximising local 
employment 
opportunities

• Ensuring ongoing 
support and mentoring 
for local staff;

• Maximising training 
opportunities for local 
staff

# of local community 
people employed to 
deliver agency services

Aged Care: 
Manyallaluk: 0
Barunga: 0
Beswick: 3
Mataranka: 2
Bulman: 0
Numbulwar: 1
Ngukkur: 2
Community Safety:
Barunga: 3
Beswick: 3
Borroloola: 6
Bulman: 1
Jilkminggan: 4
Manyallaluk: 3
Mataranka: 5
Ngukurr: 6
Numbulwar: 5
Sport and Recreation:
Barunga: 1
Beswick: 2
Borroloola: 4
Bulman: 2
Jilkminggan: 1
Manyallaluk: 0
Mataranka: 0
Ngukurr: 0
Numbulwar: 1
Crèche:
Beswick: 4
Manyallaluk: 1
Jilkminggan: 4
Youth Services:
Borroloola: 1
Ngukurr: 1
Numbulwar: 2
Libraries:
Barunga: 0
Borroloola: 0
Mataranka: 1
Ngukurr: 1

2.1.2 

Undertake targeted 
communications and 
consultation to increase 
community awareness 
about, and participation in, 
services provided by Council 
and other stakeholders

Achieved in Goal 1, 
Outcome 1.1.6

Achieved in Goal 1, 
Outcome 1.1.6 

Achieved in Goal 1,  
Outcome 1.1.6



55Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21

Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve 
strategy

KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

2.2 

Increase public safety 
through environmental 
design and service 
delivery

2.2.1 

Conduct regular community 
safety audits of primary 
and secondary hotspots in 
communities and act on 
audit recommendations

Development of regular 
community safety audits 
on primary and secondary 
hotspots program

> 2 safety audits 
conducted for each 
community/year:

• Black spots

• Areas of danger

• Urban decay

Due to the ComSafe Manager 
role being largely vacant 
during the reporting period, 
minimal work in this space 
has been undertaken. Surveys 
have been conducted in 
communities to ascertain 
their satisfaction and any 
downfalls with the ComSafe 
programs.

This information will be used 
to benchmark and improve 
these services.

2.2.2 

Install solar lighting in 
identified public areas

Install solar lighting in 
identified areas of need

# of lights installed in 
public places by location

Jilkminggan: 16 LED 
Mataranka: None
Borroloola: Planning in place 
to replace 116 streetlights 
with 40w LED 
Robinson River: None
Beswick: 76 LED 
Manyallaluk: 21 LED
Barunga: 69 LED
Bulman: 29 LED
Minyerri: Planning in place to 
replace 35 streetlights with 
40w LED
Ngukurr: 84 LED
Urapunga: 18 LED
Numbulwar: 47 LED

2.2.3 

Introduce technology to 
reduce vandalism and graffiti 
of Council assets and public 
infrastructure

Identify and install the 
technology to reduce 
vandalism and graffiti in 
public places

Annual comparison of 
incidents from previous 
years (reported end of 
year).

CCTV Cameras installed in 
Numbulwar and Ngukurr.

2019/20 – 10 property 
damage

2020/21 -  18 property 
damage

2.2.4 

Continued delivery of 
Community Night Patrol 
program

Maintain and implement 
the Regional Community 
Safety Strategy

KPI outlined above This program has been 
successfully delivered during 
the reporting period. Further 
work needs to be done to 
ensure some KPIs set by 
NIAA (funding body) are 
being met, these are mostly 
around employment and 
staff training. KPIs relating to 
community satisfaction and 
feelings of safety are being 
met.  
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve 
strategy

KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

2.3 

Vibrant, economically 
sustainable communities

2.3.1 

Consult with stakeholders 
to identify priority projects 
specific to each community

Town priorities identified 
through Local Authorities 
and community 
consultations

Town priority reports in 
every Local Authority 
Agenda

Completed

Public consultation phase 
of Regional Plan occurs 
each year

Completed

2.3.2 

Advocate to other tiers of 
Government, stakeholders 
and financial partners to 
secure support and funding 
for identified priority 
projects

Implement Communication 
Strategy to ensure positive 
engagement with key 
stakeholders

Activity pursue grant and 
other funding opportunities 
to support development of 
Town Priorities

# of grants applied for and 
total value

7 applied for

Valued at $2,348,577

% of successful grants 4 successful (57%)

Valued at $743,577

2.3.3 

Utilise Council’s 
existing networks and 
communications channels 
to actively promote positive 
economic and social 
stories from communities 
in the Roper Gulf Local 
Government Area

Utilise communication 
mechanisms available to 
Council to promote positive 
stories

Quarterly reporting to 
Council on communication 
statistics

Completed

2.3.4 

Increase own-sourced 
revenue to allow Council to 
fund more identified priority 
projects

Promote and increase 
Council own-sourced 
revenues through rates, 
grants, contracts and 
enterprise development

Comparison of own-
source revenue income 
against previous year

Revenue increase by 1.8%

2.3.5 

Advocate for improved 
connectivity through 
development of linear 
infrastructure

Engage with appropriate 
agency on high priority 
linear infrastructure needs 
in each community

Town priority reports in 
every Local Authority 
Agenda includes advocacy 
needs 

Town priorities presented to 
Local Authorities for update 
for Regional and Strategic 
Plan purposes

NTG & Australian 
Government lobbied for 
community infrastructure 
needs.

2.3.6 

Develop Council’s ability 
and capacity to successfully 
deliver contract and agency 
services infrastructure on 
behalf of Government

Maintain our position of 
interest in the development 
process of the Territory 
Government including 
the applications of Sub-
Divisional Guidelines

Council adopts sub-
divisional guidelines

New development plans 
are sent to Council for 
comments. Response 
given to Borroloola town 
camp development.

Sub-divisional guidelines still 
not adopted by Council

Advocate for Government 
to fund purpose built 
infrastructure for Agency 
Programs

Town priority reports in 
every Local Authority 
Agenda includes advocacy 
needs

Town Priorities presented to 
Local Authorities for update 
and inclusion in Regional 
Plans

2.3.7 

Service delivery 
improvements for Daly 
Waters, Larrimah, Minyerri, 
Robinson River and 
Urapunga

Develop service delivery 
plans and budgets to 
improve services in Daly 
Waters, Larrimah, Minyerri, 
Robinson River and 
Urapunga

Service Plans completed 
by 30 September 2022

To be reported at end of 
2021/22 financial year



57Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21

GOAL 3: TO PROTECT AND CARE FOR OUR 
PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 

Council contributes to protecting the natural assets of the Roper Gulf Local Government Area through 
innovative animal health, waste management and recycling strategies, the development of green spaces and 
improved energy efficiency practices.

Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

3.1 

Council decreases its 
carbon footprint

3.1.1 

Implement processes to 
improve energy efficiency 
and decrease power 
and water consumption 
by Council undertaking 
regular energy audits of its 
operation and increasing the 
proportion of operations 
that rely on renewable 
energy sources

Review and Refresh the 
Council’s Green Plan.  
Including:

• Develop and implement an 
energy efficiency program 
across organisation

• Undertake regular energy 
audits of its operation 

• Implement Water Wise 
program for Council 
facilities

Adoption of new Green 
Plan

 Not completed

Reduction and stabilisation 
of energy and water usage

Utility costs reduced by 4%

3.1.2 

Revise and implement 
Council’s Green Plan

Revise and update previous 
Green Plan

Council adopts new green 
plan

Not completed

3.1.3 

Advocate and manage for 
initiatives that will protect 
the natural resources of 
the Roper Gulf Region and 
reduce the negative impacts 
of potential climate change

Continue to incorporate weed 
and fire management in to 
Council’s Operations

Each community have 
up-to-date weed and fire 
management plans

Not completed

3.2 Contribute to 
the protection of the 
natural environment

3.2.1 

Develop and implement a 
long-term road and storm 
water drainage maintenance 
plan for Council-controlled 
roads

Develop and implement a 
road and storm water drain 
long term asset management 
plan

Annual review by Roads 
Committee

Long term road upgrade plan 
prepared and road asset audit 
conducted

3.2.2 

Implement improved 
waste management 
strategies that incorporate 
resource recovery and 
ensure compliant Waste 
Management Facilities

Develop Regional waste 
management strategy

Regional Waste 
Management Strategy 
completed

Not completed. Due to 
be completed in 2021/22 
utilising WARM funding from 
NTG

3.2.3 

Promote the benefit of 
waste resource recovery

Continue with promotion of 
resource recovery activities 
throughout the region

An increase of Container 
Deposit Scheme products 
recycled

Recycling is being undertaken 
in the following Communities;
Beswick, Barunga, 
Jilkminggan and Mataranka.
Total units collected in 
Mataranka and Jilkminggan = 
716,568 units
Mataranka recycling has 
increased 4%
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

3.2.4 

Develop green spaces that 
improve public amenity and 
advocate for the inclusion in 
urban development projects

Include service levels in 
operational plans for parks 
and gardens

All service levels achieved Service levels achieved

3.2.5 

Continue to develop, 
implement and enforce litter 
and waste By-Laws in all 
communities

Undertake Community 
Consultation as part of the 
review of the Litter By-Laws

Community Consultation 
undertaken in each 
community

Not completed. To be 
completed in 2021/22 
following the new Council 
commencing

3.3 

Improved animal 
health in remote 
communities

3.3.1 

Delivery of Animal Health 
Program in communities 
specified in Council’s annual 
rates declaration and user-
pays veterinary services for 
other residents in the Local 
Government Area.

Continue program of de-
sexing of animals and animal 
health, welfare and control.

% of male and female 
animals de-sexed (total per 
community).

Total:
42 Cats, 140 Dogs 
Barunga (Dogs)
Male: 24.43%
Female: 48.09%
Barunga (Cats)
Male: 14.29%
Female: 35.71%
Borroloola (Dogs)
Male: 22.96%
Female: 43.50%
Borroloola (Cats)
Male: 58.33%
Female: 37.50%
Bulman (Dogs)
Male: 29.67%
Female: 36.26%
Bulman (Cats)
Male: 45.00%
Female: 50.00%
Jilkminggan (Dogs)
Male: 20.21%
Female: 28.72%
Jilkminggan (Cats)
Male: 16.67%
Female: 50.00%
Jodetluk (Dogs)
Male: 66.67%
Female: 33.33%
Kewyuli  (Dogs)
Male: 15.38%
Female: 61.54%
Kewyuli (Cats)
Male: 0.00%
Female: 100.00%
Manyallaluk (Dogs)
Male: 20.00%
Female: 23.33%
Manyallaluk (Cats)
Male: 28.57%
Female: 42.86%
Mataranka (Dogs)
Male: 33.33%
Female: 66.67%
Mataranka (Cats)
Male: 50.00%
Female: 33.33%
Mulggan (Dogs)
Male: 15.79%
Female: 42.11%
Mulggan (Cats)
Male: 100.00%
Female: 0.00%
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

Ngukurr (Dogs)
Male: 30.88%
Female: 37.54%
Ngukurr (Cats)
Male: 38.54%
Female: 39.58%
Numbulwar (Dogs)
Male: 30.04%
Female: 34.07%
Numbulwar (Cats)
Male: 36.67%
Female: 26.67%
Robinson River (Dogs)
Male: 27.72%
Female: 39.60%
Robinson River (Cats)
Male: 31.43%
Female: 54.29%
Urapunga (Dogs)
Male: 6.25%
Female: 27.08%
Urapunga (Cats)
Male: 20.00%
Female: 20.00%
Weemol (Dogs)
Male: 31.58%
Female: 47.37%
Weemol (Cats)
Male: 33.33%
Female: 33.33%
Werenbun (Dogs)
Male: 28.57%
Female: 42.86%
Werenbun (Cats)
Male: 28.57%
Female: 57.14%
Wugularr (Dogs)
Male: 18.37%
Female: 41.84%
Wugularr (Cats)
Male: 33.33%
Female: 47.22%

Minyerri (Dogs)
Male: 26.94%
Female: 31.61%
Minyerri (Cats)
Male: 40.00%
Female: 43.33%
*Figures reflect a baseline

# of animals treated Total: 2731

78 Cats and 2653 Dogs
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

# Community visits by 
animal management staff. 

2 visits per community were 
made this financial year- 
surgical visits were decreased 
as no nurse was available 
early in 2021. 

Parvovirus vaccinations have 
been made available in some 
communities via the Roper 
Gulf Offices and trained 
Animal workers.

Some communities also carry 
Nexgard and Seresto collars 
for sale in the Roper Gulf 
Office and through some 
stores.

3.3.2 Development and 
delivery of targeted, 
educational programs that 
engage stakeholders and 
advocate the whole-of-
community benefits of 
responsible pet ownership 
and proactive animal health 
practices

Provide animal education 
and awareness through 
conducting school-based 
education programs and 
liaising with pet owners

# of education awareness 
events >2 per annum per 
community

As per above (educational 
awareness events are 
incorporated into community 
visits)

# of dog bites recorded 18

# of complaints made to 
council

2 formal complaints.

Informal complaints dealt 
with on a case by case basis 
as they arose by visiting and/
or phone calls.

3.3.3 

Continue to develop, 
implement and enforce 
animal control By-Laws.

Undertake Community 
Consultation as part of the 
review of the Roper Gulf 
By-Laws

Community Consultation 
undertaken in each 
community

Not completed (whole of 
Council dog By-Laws to be 
advocated by new Council)

3.4 

Build the resilience of 
communities against 
emergencies

3.4.1 

Continue to be actively 
involved in disaster 
management preparation, 
response and recovery in 
Katherine and the Roper 
Gulf Local Government Area

Katherine and remote staff 
to be engaged in local area 
emergency planning and 
implementation

Respond and support 
lead agency emergency 
management needs/
requirements

Completed (provided and 
participated in emergency 
response issues throughout 
the financial year including 
cyclone, flooding and 
Covid-19 events)

3.4.2 

Continue to represent 
Council on the Katherine 
and Local Area Emergency 
Management Committees

Katherine and remote staff 
to be engaged in local area 
emergency planning and 
implementation

Respond and support 
lead agency emergency 
management needs/
requirements

As above

3.4.3 

Developing infrastructure to 
withstand extreme climatic 
events and emergencies

Assets recognised as resistant 
or vulnerable to extreme 
weather included in asset 
management plans

All Council assets assessed 
and included in AMP

Council buildings and 
infrastructure meet the 
needs of the environmental 
conditions



61Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21

GOAL 4: TO SUPPORT TRAINING AND 
EMPLOYMENT IN REMOTE COMMUNITIES 

Council engages stakeholders to identify and deliver training and employment opportunities in the Roper Gulf 
Local Government Area.

Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

4.1 

Local jobs for local 
people

4.1.1 

Undertake targeted 
communications to 
increase stakeholder 
awareness of 
local Council job 
opportunities

Develop Regional marketing 
campaign to promote 
employment opportunities

> 26 vacancy bulletins 
provided to stakeholders per 
annum

100% completed.

Vacancy bulletins posted 
on website, Facebook & 
community noticeboards.

Delivered to CDP providers.

4.1.2 

Identify and support 
opportunities for service 
and program growth 
that result in increased 
job opportunities for 
local people

Continue to identify and 
support opportunities for 
service growth resulting in 
additional jobs

# of new services No new services

% of locally-sourced staff as 
part of overall workforce

64% 

4.1.3 

Advocate to 
Government and 
other stakeholders 
to provide training 
and employment 
opportunities for local 
people

Liaise with regional partners 
to identify local training 
opportunities within the region

Government response to 
Council advocacy

No new training initiatives 
delivered

4.1.4 

Participate in annual 
careers events for 
the greater Katherine 
Region which 
promote Council job 
opportunities for local 
people

Join forces with Katherine 
Town Council and Victoria 
Daly Regional Council to have 
a local government stall at the 
Katherine Careers Expo and 
other careers events

# of events attended Not achieved

4.1.5 

Continue to attract and 
maintain contracts and 
services to employ local 
people

Continue to identify and 
support opportunities for 
service growth resulting in 
additional jobs

# of new services/ services 
lost

No new services/ no 
services lost

% of locally-sourced staff as 
part of overall workforce

64%
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Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

4.2 

Increase community 
based training 
programs that promote 
job readiness and life 
skills

4.2.1 

Continued delivery 
of Community 
Development Program 
(CDP) to provide 
training and upskilling 
opportunities for local 
jobseekers

Continued quality delivery of 
program ensuring compliance/
service delivery/data entry/
appropriateness of activities/
job placement

Achieve minimum 75% 
performance rating as 
determined by NIAA 2x PPR 
Reporting Periods

PPR10: 
Feedback only as program 
was on suspension with 
Covid-19

PPR11:
Region 29 (Borroloola) – 
82.57%

Region 30 (Numbulwar, 
Minyerri, Jilkminggan and 
Mataranka) – 80.83%

4.2.2 

Collaborate with 
stakeholders to provide 
training opportunities 
in community 
development projects

Collaborate with stakeholders 
to provide training 
opportunities within Council 
by developing host agreements 
with other CDP providers.

Develop positive relationships 
with potential hosting 
organisations to maximise 
opportunities of hosting 
arrangements.

Develop data bases of skills, 
qualifications, licences, and 
community priorities for 
meaningful training and 
completion of projects.

Community consultation in all 
CDP delivery sites. Minimum 1 
per quarter

BBQ / Breakfast 
Consultation continue to 
take place on all sites.

Liaising with stakeholders 
and negotiating new host 
agreements is ongoing.

Strong relationship 
with BIITE for training 
being delivered on-sites 
that compliments host 
agreements.

Data base updating Job 
Seeker qualifications, 
licenses etc. is a live 
document constantly 
updated.

4.2.3 

Collaborate with 
training providers and 
funding partners to 
increase the number of 
in-community training 
opportunities

Continue to work with RTO’s/
stakeholders in providing 
quality/relevant training on 
community

# of training workshops/
community

Borroloola: 4
Jilkminggan & Mataranka: 6
Numbulwar: 6

# of participants attending Borroloola:
White Card: 20 participants
Cert III Civil Machinery: 18 
participants
Small Engines: 13 
participants
Chainsaw: 10 participants

Jilkminggan & Mataranka:
Drive safe (x2): 35 
participants 
White Card: 12 participants
Welding: 15 participants
Cert II Family & Wellbeing: 
19 participants
Cert II Civil Machinery: 14 
participants

Numbulwar:
Licenses C Class:  
4 participants
Licenses Learners: 
7 participants
Licenses P Plates:  
2 participants
Licenses LR Upgrade:  
4 participants
Cert II Construction:  
14 participants
Cert I Business (Ladies):  
16 participants



63Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21

Outcomes Strategy Activities to achieve strategy KPI Result for Financial Year 
2020-2021

4.3 

Generational growth 
in employment 
opportunities

4.3.1 

Provide engagement 
training for, Elected 
Members, Local 
Authority Members 
and staff

Incorporate engagement 
training and development in 
to the annual training plan 
for Elected Members, Local 
Authority Members and staff

# of training events 0 (deferred due to other 
Council priorities) 

4.3.2 

Develop Indigenous 
employment strategy, 
and career management 
and mentoring 
strategies that position 
Council as an employer 
of choice

Indigenous workforce 
strategies identified through 
HR analysis and included in 
Council’s HR Strategic Plan

Workforce strategies reported 
against every six months to 
SLT

Draft Indigenous 
Employment Plan has been 
developed. To be completed 
in 2021-22
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MEETING ATTENDANCE REPORT 

The following information reports on the third sitting Roper Gulf Regional 
Council, for the period from 1 July 2020 – 30 June 2021. The 2021 Local 
Government election has since taken place, which has seen a number of 
new Councillors elected. The fourth sitting Council will not be included in 
these reports. 

Elected Members Attendance

The third sitting Roper Gulf Regional Council comprises 13 Elected 
Members, elected on 26 August 2017. The Council met 7 times in 
the 2020-21 financial year, with meetings held in Katherine and other 
communities in the Roper Gulf region.

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Members % Attendance  
7 meetings were held

Mayor Judy Macfarlane 100%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 85.7%

Annabelle Daylight 71.4%

Selina Ashley 42.8%

Donald Garner 100%

Edwin Nungumajbarr 100%

Owen Turner 100%

Clifford Duncan 83.33%

Deanna Kennedy 71.4%

Marlene Karkadoo 71.4%

Samuel Evans 85.7%

Ossie Daylight 71.4%

David Murrungun 28.6 %
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Council Committees

During the 2020-21 financial year, Roper Gulf Regional Council had a Finance Committee, an Audit Committee, 
a Roads Committee and a Community Grants Committee.

Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2019, a Council can establish a committee which is assigned 
functions or an executive of advisory nature. The Act allows a committee to have a wide range of functions, 
and the members of a committee may include people who are not Elected Members or Council staff.  
Any committee is subject to the control and direction of the Council.

Finance Committee Attendance

Members % Attendance  
5 meetings were held

Independent Member Awais Ur Rehman 100%

Mayor Judy Macfarlane 100%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 100%

Owen Turner 40%

Samuel Evans 80%

Ossie Daylight 80%

Roads Committee Attendance

Members % Attendance  
4 meetings were held

Mayor Judy Macfarlane 100%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 100%

Annabelle Daylight 50%

Donald Garner 100%

Edwin Nungumajbarr 100%

Owen Turner 50%

Audit Committee Attendance

Members % Attendance  
5 meetings were held

Independent Member Garry Lambert 100%

Independent Member Carolyn Eagle 100%

David Murrungun 75%

Donald Garner 100%

Marlene Karkadoo 50%

* Of the five (5) member positions, an independent member has resigned and an elected member vacancy has occurred. 
The attendees represent 66% of held positions. Members and the Chief Executive Officer agreed to proceed with the meeting.
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Local Authorities

The 12 Local Authorities within the Roper Gulf Regional Council Local Government Area comprise of people 
who live in the respective communities, are selected on the basis of their capacity to contribute to the effective 
functioning of the committee and are appointed by Council. Local Authorities are a critical link between the 
Council and the communities in which it delivers services and programs. 

Nyirranggulung Ward

Barunga

Members % Attendance  
7 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 100%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 85.7%

Councillor Deanna Kennedy 71.4%

Councillor Selina Ashley 0%

Jeffery McDonald 0%

Nell Brown 85.7%

Anita Painter 80%

Freddy Scrubby 85.7%

Danielle Bush 100%

Barun Bush 0%

Charlene Balumbara 66.67%

Anne-Marie Lee 0%

Vita Brinjen 0%

Beswick

Members % Attendance  
5 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 80%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 80%

Councillor Selina Ashley 60%

Councillor Deanna Kennedy 80%

Trephina Bush 80%

Raelene Bulumbara 40%

Kathleen Lane 0%

Anne-Marie Ryan 60%

Eddie Kennedy 80%

Anne-Marie Thompson-Kenny 0%
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Bulman

Members % Attendance  
2 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 100%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 100%

Councillor Selina Ashley 50%

Councillor Deanna Kennedy 0%

Peter Miller* 50%

Annette Miller* 50%

John Dalywater* 50%

Annuciata Bradshaw 0%

Jill Curtis 100%

Darilyn Martin 50%

Anthony Kennedy* **

Aaron Rickson* **

Charmain Brinjen* **

Chantelle Miller* **

Loretta Lindsay* **

Spencer Martin* **

Council disbanded the Bulman Local Authority at the 16 June 2021 Ordinary Meeting of Council, call for nominations were opened the 
same day

*Council appointed the new members at the 28 July 2021 Ordinary Meeting of Council 
**No results for the newly appointed Local Authority Members as no meeting was held during the financial year

Manyallaluk

Members % Attendance  
4 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 100%

Deputy Mayor Helen Lee 100%

Councillor Deanna Kennedy 75%

Councillor Selina Ashley 0%

Shaunette Mumbin 75%

Eileen Avelum 100%

Cynthia Williri 50%

Ben Kleing 75%

Mikala Ashley 50%

Rachael Kendino 50%
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Never Never Ward

Mataranka

Members % Attendance  
7 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 100%

Councillor Annabelle Daylight 0%

Councillor Ossie Daylight 0%

Diane Angel 85.7%

Alan Chapman 71.4%

Sue Edwards 100%

Jillian Emerson-Smith 100%

Margaret Minnett 85.7%

Michael Somers 85.7%

Rachael Waters 42.8%

Jilkminggan

Members % Attendance  
5 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 100%

Councillor Annabelle Daylight 60%

Councillor Ossie Daylight 60%

Phyllis Conway 0%

Simone Baker 0%

Lisa McDonald 80%

Shirley Roberts 80%

Anne-Marie Woods 80%

Wayne Roy 80%

Timothy Baker 100%

Minyerri

Members % Attendance  
6 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 50%

Councillor Ossie Daylight 0%

Councillor Annabelle Daylight 0%

Nerrale Arnold 100%

Clive Roberts 33.33%

Beth John 66.67%

Johnathon Walla 100%

Samuel Swanson 66.67%
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Yugul Mangi Ward 

Ngukurr

Members % Attendance 
5 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 60%

Councillor Clifford Duncan 25%

Councillor Owen Turner 80%

Robin Rogers 60%

Michelle Farrell 100%

Tanya Joshua 80%

Marcia Roberts 60%

Craig Rogers 100%

Urapunga

Members % Attendance  
4 meetings were held

Mayor Judy Macfarlane 75%

Councillor Owen Turner 0%

Councillor Clifford Duncan 75%

Dennis Duncan 50%

Elaine Duncan 50%

Amanda Jeffs 75%

Paul Jeffs 100%

Edna Nelson 75%

Antonella Pascoe 75%

Numbulwar Numbirindi Ward

Numbulwar

Members % Attendance  
6 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 33.33%

Councillor Edwin Nunggumajbarr 83.33%

Councillor David Murrungun 50%

Douglas Wunungmarra 66.67%

Felicity Rami 66.67%

Amanda Ngalmi 66.67%

Ronald Nundhirribala 66.67%

Rhonda Simon 100%

Dale Murrungun 100%

Robert- Clive Beckett 0%
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South West Gulf Ward

Borroloola

Members % Attendance  
6 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 83.33%

Councillor Donald Garner 83.33%

Councillor Samuel Evans 50%

Councillor Marlene Karkadoo 83.33%

Michael Longton 100%

Stan Allen 83.33%

Jon Sauer 80%

Trish Elmy 80%

Maria Pyro 50%

Raymond Anderson 50%

Robinson River

Members % Attendance  
4 meetings were held

Mayor Judy MacFarlane 25%

Councillor Donald Garner 75%

Councillor Samuel Evans 0%

Councillor Marlene Karkadoo 50%

Timothy Simon 100%

Margaret Shadforth 100%

Richard Dixon 50%

Curtis Shadforth 100%

Jasmine Campbell 100%

Shandel Dick 25%

Freddy Jackson 75%

Susan George 50%

Farron Jackson 50%

Melissa Noble 50%
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement 

 
I, Marc Gardner, the Chief Executive Officer of Roper Gulf Regional Council, certify that to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief: 
 
(a) the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with  the Local Government Act, the 

Local Government (Accounting) Regulations and the Australian Accounting Standards and professional 
pronouncements so as to present fairly the financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2021 and the 
results for the year then ended; and 
 

(b) the financial statements are in accordance with the accounting and other records of the Council. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

......................................................................... 

Marc Gardner  
Acting Chief Executive Officer 
Dated:  29 October 2021 
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Independent audit report to the Chief Executive Officer of Roper Gulf Regional Council 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial report of Roper Gulf Regional 
Council (“the Council”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, 
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant 
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the Chief Executive Officer’s Statement. 

In our opinion, the financial report of the Roper Gulf Regional Council is in accordance with the 
Northern Territory Local Government Act 2008, including: 

(a) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2021 and of 
the Council’s performance for the year ended on that date; and 

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting 
Interpretations) Local Government regulations. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Report section of our report.  

We are independent of the Council in accordance with the Northern Territory Local Government 
Act 2008 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the ‘Code’) that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

The Responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer for the Financial Report  

The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Council is responsible for the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Northern Territory Local Government Act 2008 and for such internal control as the CEO 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the CEO is responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Council or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Council’s financial reporting 
process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole 
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the CEO.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the CEO’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Council to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the Chief Executive Officer and those charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
Merit Partners 
 

 
Matthew Kennon 
Director 
 
DARWIN 
26 October 2021 
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2021 
 

  NOTES 2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Revenue      
 Grants and contributions 4(a) 23,343,210 24,429,896 
 User charges and fees 4(b) 617,925 603,779 
 Rates and annual charges 4(c)  2,725,582 2,764,181 
 Other revenue 4(d) 14,412,703 13,634,795 
 Net profit /(loss) on disposal of assets 6 391,093 243,745 
 Interest revenue 7 233,268 400,784 
     
 Total Revenue  41,723,782 42,077,180 
     
Expenses      
 Employee costs 5(a) 16,692,785 16,933,598 
 Materials and contracts 5(b) 9,343,847 7,415,272 
 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment, etc  5(c)  6,358,514 5,171,917 
 Finance Costs 5(d) 208,723 213,432 
 Other expenses 5(e) 6,229,801 8,421,706 
     
 Total Expenses  38,833,671 38,155,925 
     
 Surplus (Deficit) for the year  2,890,111 3,921,255 
     
 Other comprehensive income for the year   -832,892 0 
     
 Total comprehensive income (loss)  2,057,219 3,921,255 
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Statement of financial position  
as at 30 June 2021 

  NOTES 2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
 Assets     
Current Assets      
 Cash and cash equivalents 6 23,984,174 16,840,923 
 Trade and other receivables 7 1,849,489 970,462 
 Investments 8 17,000,000 19,038,479 
 Inventories 9 216,670 230,686 
 Other current assets 10 151,004 179,870 
 Total Current Assets   43,201,337 37,260,420 
     
Non-current Assets      
 Property, plant and equipment 11 83,717,488 81,202,108 
     
 Total Non-current Assets   83,717,488 81,202,108 
     
Total Assets    126,918,825 118,462,528 
     
 Liabilities     
Current Liabilities      
 Trade and other payables 12 3,403,908 2,364,612 
 Borrowings 13 82,216 52,203 
 Grant Liability 14 11,457,766 10,469,405 
 Provisions 15 1,433,501 1,357,765 
 Other Current Liabilities 16 626,031 0 
 Total Current Liabilities   17,003,422 14,243,985 
     
Non-current 
Liabilities      
 Borrowings 13 4,646,457 5,474,304 
 Provisions 15 4,825,349 357,858 
     
 Total Non-current Liabilities   9,471,806 5,832,162 
     
Total Liabilities    26,475,228 20,076,147 
     
Net Assets    100,443,597 98,386,381 
     
 Equity     
     
 Asset Revaluation Reserve   54,077,638 54,910,531 
 Accumulated Funds   46,365,958 43,475,850 
     
     
Total Equity    100,443,597 98,386,381 

 
  

78 Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21



Roper Gulf Regional Council 
ABN: 94 746 956 090 

 
 
 

10 
 

Statement in Changes to Equity 
as at 30 June 2021 
 

  Revaluation 
Reserve 

 

Accumulated 
Funds 

 

Total  
 

Balance as at 30 June 2019  54,910,531 39,554,595 94,465,126 
     
Balance as at 1 July 2019  54,910,531 39,554,595 94,465,126 
Total comprehensive income for the year  0 3,921,255 3,921,255 
     
Balance as at 30 June 2020  54,910,531 43,475,850 98,386,381 
     
     
Balance as at 1 July 2020  54,910,530 43,475,848 98,386,378 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -832,892 2,890,111 2,057,219 
     
Balance as at 30 June 2021  54,077,638 46,365,958 100,443,597 
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Statement of cash flows 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2021 
 

   2021 2020 
   $ $ 
Cash from operating Activities     
Grants received   24,333,496 22,759,051 
Receipts from customers   17,020,115 17,537,575 
Interest received   233,268 400,784 
Payments to suppliers and employees   -31,802,482 -32,334,633 
Interest paid   -208,723 -213,432 
   9,575,674 8,149,345 
     
Cash from investing activities     
Purchase of property plant and equipment   -4,809,792 -10,062,494 
Proceeds from sale property, plant and equipment   391,093 243,745 
Acquisitions of short term investments   2,038,479 -19,038,479 
   -2,380,220 -28,857,228 
     
Cash flows from financing activities     
Loans received     
Hire purchase repayments   0  
Lease repayments   -52,203 -48,261 
   -52,203 -48,261 
     
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    7,143,251 -20,756,145 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year    16,840,923 37,597,068 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year    23,984,174 16,840,923 
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Notes to the financial statements 
 
1. General information 

The Roper Gulf Regional Council (the “Council” or “RGRC”) was established as a body corporate by 
a restructuring order under section 114C of the Local Government Act on 16 October 2007. The 
Council came into full operation on 1 July 2008, when it merged with other constituent councils to 
form the local government authority, also referred to as the Roper Gulf Regional Council. The new 
council incorporated six (6) local government bodies: 
 
1. Borroloola Community Government Council; 
2. Jilkminggan Community Government Council; 
3. Mataranka Community Government Council; 
4. Numbulwar Numburindi Community Government Council; 
5. Nyirranggulung Mardulk Ngadberre Regional Council; 
6. Yugul Mangi Community Government Council; and a large area of currently unincorporated 

land, the Gulf, Roper Valley, Stuart Plateau and Southern Arnhem Land. 
 
Roper Gulf Regional Council registered office and its principal place of business is as follows:  

 
Registered office 
P.O. Box 1321, 
Katherine, NT 0851  
 

 
Principal place of business 
2 Crawford Street 
Katherine, NT 0850 
 

The Council has its main office located in Katherine, Northern Territory. The business of the Council 
is conducted within the community government area situated in the Northern and Eastern Regions 
around Katherine.  
 
The purpose of this financial report is to provide users with information about the stewardship of 
the Council and accountability for the resources entrusted to it, information about the financial 
position, performance and cash flow of the Council. 
 
 

2. Application of new and revised Accounting Standards 
The Council applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. New standards and amendments relevant to 
the Council are listed below. The Council has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation 
or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 
 
Amendments to AASB 101 and AASB 108 Definition of Material 
The amendments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if 
omitting misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the 
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial 
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The 
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either 
individually or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A 
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions 
made by the primary users. These amendments had no direct impact on the financial statements 
of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to the Council. 
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3. Significant accounting policies  
Financial reporting framework 
 
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in 
accordance with the Local Government Act, the Local Government (Accounting) Regulations and 
the Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements so as to present fairly the 
financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2021. The Council is a not-for-profit entity for financial 
reporting purposes. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Chief Executive Officer on 26 October 
2021. 
 
The Local Government Reporting Entity 
 
The resources Council controls to carry on its functions have been included in the financial 
statements forming part of the report. 
 
A summary of activities listing along with their contribution to the operating result is provided in 
the notes to the financial statements. In the process of reporting on the local government as a 
single unit, all transactions and balances between those activities (for example, loans and transfers 
between activities) have been eliminated. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for Land, 
Building, Infrastructure and Roads that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end 
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. 
 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for goods 
and services. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether 
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the 
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Council takes into account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset 
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in 
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some 
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in AASB 102 ‘Inventories’ 
or value in use in AASB “Impairment of Assets” 
 
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable 
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are 
described as follows: 
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• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial report: 
 
(a) Revenue and Other Income 
 
The Council recognises revenue at the fair value of the  consideration received or receivable. 
Income is recognised when the Council obtains control over the  assets comprising the income, or 
when the amount due constitutes an enforceable debt, whichever first occurs. 
Accounting for Grants 
When the Council receives government grants that are in the scope of AASB 1058 (being a 
transaction where the consideration paid to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value 
principally to enable the Council to further its objectives) , it performs an assessment to 
determine if the contract is ‘enforceable’ and contains ‘sufficiently specific’ performance 
obligations.  
In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with ‘sufficiently specific’ 
performance obligations, the transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where income is 
recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied.  
In all other cases (where the contract is not ‘enforceable’ or the performance obligations are not 
‘sufficiently specific’), the transaction is accounted for under AASB 1058 where the Council:  

• Recognises the asset in accordance with the requirements of other relevant applicable 
Australian Accounting Standards (e.g. AASB 9, AASB 16, AASB 116 and AASB 138)  

• Considers whether any other financial statement elements should be recognised (‘related 
amounts’) in accordance with the relevant applicable Australian Accounting Standard 
including:  

• contributions by owners (AASB 1004)  
• a lease liability (AASB 16)  
• a financial instrument (AASB 9)  
• a provision (AASB 137)  

• Recognises income immediately in profit or loss for the excess of the initial carrying amount 
of the asset over any related amounts recognised.  

To determine if a grant contract should be accounted for under AASB 1058 or AASB 15, the 
Council has to determine if the contract is ‘enforceable’ and contains ‘sufficiently specific’ 
performance obligations. When assessing if the performance obligations are ‘sufficiently specific’, 
the Council has applied significant judgement in this regard by performing a detailed analysis of 
the terms and conditions contained in the grant contracts, review of accompanying 
documentation (e.g. activity work plans) and holding discussions with relevant parties. Income 
recognition from grants received by the Council have been appropriately accounted for under 
AASB 1058 or AASB 15 based on the assessment performed. 
 
Rates 
Rates are enforceable debt linked to rateable property that will be recovered when the property is 
sold, and therefore control normally passes at the time of levying, or where earlier upon receipt of 
rates paid in advance. The rating period and reporting period for the Council coincide and 
accordingly, all rates levied for the year are recognised as revenues. 
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All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
 
(b) Leasing 
 
Council as lessor 
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 
 
 
Council as a lessee  
The Council recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets.  
 
i) Right-of-use assets  
The Council recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use 
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the 
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and the estimate of costs to 
be incurred to restore the leased asset. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (s) 
Impairment of non-financial assets.  
 
ii) Lease liabilities  
At the commencement date of the lease, the Council recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value 
of lease payments, the Council uses its incremental borrowing rate or the interest rate implicit in 
the lease.  
 
iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets  
The Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of 
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 
commencement date). It also applies the low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office 
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases 
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

 
(c) Employee benefits 
 
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual 
leave and long service leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are 
capable of being measured reliably.  
 
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits, are measured at their nominal 
values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.  
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Liabilities recognised in respect of long term employee benefits are measured as the present value 
of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Council in respect of services provided by 
employees up to reporting date. 
 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when 
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 
 
(d) Income tax 
 
The Council is tax exempt under section 50-25 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997, being a 
local governing body. 
 
(e) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Property plant and equipment other than Land, Building, Site Improvement and Structure and 
Roads is carried at cost, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Asset Recognition Threshold 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the statement of 
financial position, except for purchases costing less than $5,000 which are expensed in the year of 
acquisition (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in 
total).  
 
Revaluations 
Land, Building, Site Improvement and Structure and Roads are measured at fair value, in 
accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. 
 
Following initial recognition at cost, Land, Building, Site Improvement and Structure and Roads are 
carried at fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Valuations are conducted in sufficient frequency (from 3 to 5 years) to ensure that the 
carrying amounts of assets did not differ materially from the assets' fair values as at the end of 
reporting date. The regularity of independent valuations depends upon the volatility of movements 
in market values of relevant assets. 
 
A comprehensive revaluation of entire Land, Building, Site Improvement and Structure and Roads 
of the Council as of 30 June 2021 was conducted by Marsh Australia. Accordingly, the carrying 
amount of the assets (Land, Building, Site Improvement and Structure and Roads) after revaluation 
is the restated amount calculated by eliminating any accumulated depreciation as at revaluation 
date against the gross carrying amounts of the assets. 
 
Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment upon appraisal is 
recognised in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset revaluation reserve in equity. 
To the extent that any revaluation decrease or impairment loss has previously been recognised in 
profit or loss, a revaluation increase is credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of the 
increase recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
Revaluation decrements are recognised upon appraisal or impairment testing, with the decrease 
being charged to other comprehensive income to the extent of any asset revaluation reserve in 
equity relating to this asset and any remaining decrease recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation 
reserve remaining in equity on disposal of the asset is transferred to accumulated funds. 

 
Depreciation 
Depreciable property, plant and equipment are written off to their estimated residual values over 
their estimated useful lives to the Council using, in all cases, the straight line method.  
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Useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each reporting period and 
necessary adjustments are recognised in the current or future reporting periods, as appropriate.  
 
The estimated useful lives used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

Class of Fixed Asset Useful Life 
Buildings and Infrastructure 20-50 years 
Plant and Equipment 5-20 years 
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 5-15 years 
Motor Vehicles 3-7 years 
Roads 12-100 years 

 
Impairment 
Property, plant and equipment were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2021. Where indications 
of impairment exists, the assets’ recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustments 
is made if the asset’s recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. 
Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. 
Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to 
generate future cash flows and the asset would be replaced if the Council were deprived of the 
asset, value in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost.   
 
Derecognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or where no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 
These gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, amounts 
included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to the accumulated funds. 
 
Land under Roads 
The Council has elected not to value or recognise as an asset land under roads acquired prior to 1 
July 2008 in accordance with the election available under AASB 1051 Land under Roads. Land under 
roads acquired after 1 July 2008 will be recognised at cost. The cost of the land under roads will be 
the fair value as at the date of the acquisition. 
 
Inventories 
Inventories held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a 
continual basis, after adjustment for loss of service potential. Inventories held in respect of 
business undertakings have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
(f) Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and 
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uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows 
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material). 
 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 
 
The council has an obligation to remediate and restore the landfills under the Environmental 
Protection Act. The council recognised a provision for future costs associated with landfill 
rehabilitation as at 30 June 2021. 
 
(g) Financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or 
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets 
 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade 
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
marketplace. 
 
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of financial assets. 
 
Debt instruments  
Debt Instruments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that the Council has the 
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, Debt instruments 
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest 
method. 
 
Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument 
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or 
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition. 
 
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
The council recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investment in debt 
instruments that are measured at amortised cost of trade receivables. The amount of expected 
credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial 
recognition of financial instrument.  
 
The Council recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these 
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Council’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and 

87Roper Gulf Regional Council   |   Annual Report 2020/21



Roper Gulf Regional Council 
ABN: 94 746 956 090 

 
 
 

19 
 

an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting 
date, including time value of money where appropriate. 
 
The Council recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with 
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 
 
De-recognition of financial assets 
The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Council 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to 
pay. If the Council retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Council continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
 
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised 
in profit or loss. 
 
Financial liabilities  
 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method or at FVTPL. 
 
Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost  
Financial liabilities that are not measured at FVTPL, not contingent to the acquirer and not held for 
trading, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial 
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of the financial liability. 
 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
All other financial liabilities except measured at amortise cost are measured at fair value, with any 
gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in profit and loss. 
 
De-recognition of financial liabilities 
The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Council’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
(h) Goods and services tax 
 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 
except: 
• where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is 
recognised as part of the  

cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or 
• for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part 
of receivables or payables. 
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Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows. 
 
(i) Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
In the application of the Council’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors 
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 
 
The following are significant management judgements and estimates in applying the accounting 
policies of the Council that have the most significant effect on the financial statements. 
 
Useful Lives of Depreciable Assets 
The Council estimates the useful lives of depreciable assets based on the period over which the 
assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment 
are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to 
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use 
of the assets. 
 
Fair Value of Non-Financial Assets 
Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of non-financial assets. This 
involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would 
price the asset. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this 
is not always available. In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated 
fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction 
at the reporting date (see Note 11).  
 
Calculations of Loss allowance 
When measuring ECL the Council uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information, 
which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how 
these drivers will affect each other.  
 
Loss default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive. Probability of default 
is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which 
includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. 
 
The council estimates loss rates on trade receivables based on the payment profile of the rates and 
fees & charges over a period of 36 months before 1 July 2019 or 1 July 2020 respectively and the 
corresponding historical losses experienced within the period. Historical credit loss rates are 
adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors such as 
ability of the ratepayers and residents to settle the outstanding rates. There are no material 
receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.  
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(j) Functions 
 
Revenues and expenses have been attributed to the following functions/activities. The Council 
believes that it is not practical at this stage to reliably attribute the carrying amounts of the assets 
to the functions/activities. Functions have been broken down to the following components: 
 
General Public Services 
Administrative, legislative and executive affairs, financial and fiscal affairs, general research and 
general services. 
 
Economic Affairs 
General economic, agriculture and forestry, fuel and energy, other labour and employment affairs, 
CDEP/RJCP, transport and other industries, saleyards and tourism. 
 
Environmental Protection 
Waste management, pollution reduction, protection of biodiversity and landscape and protection 
and remediation of soil, groundwater and surface water. 
 
Housing and Community Amenities 
Housing, housing and community development, water supply and street lighting. 
 
Health 
Well baby clinics, dental health services and home nursing services, nursing and convalescent home 
services, immunisation, infant nutrition and child health, family planning services. 
 
Recreation, Culture and Religion 
Facilities and venues, recreation parks and reserves, culture and religion services, museums and 
libraries. 
 
Education 
Administration, inspection, support, operation, etc of education programs and services. 
 
Social Protection 
Outlays on day care services, family day care, occasional care and outside school hours care, aged 
services, shelter protection, drug and alcohol treatment programs. 
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4 Revenue and other income 
   2021 2020 
   $ $ 
(a) Grants and Contributions     
     
 Operating grant - Australian Government  3,324,432 4,793,986 
 Operating grant - NT Government  4,663,740 4,466,940 
 Special purpose grant - Australian Government  8,893,588 9,783,876 
 Special purpose grant - NT Government  2,921,374 3,094,999 
 Capital grant - Australian Government  63,865 135,921 
 Capital grant - NT Government  3,473,193 2,101,224 
 Other grants and contributions  3,019 52,950 
 Total Grants and Contributions  23,343,210 24,429,896 
     
(b) User Charges and Fees     
     
 Property lease rental fee  504,169 458,606 
 Other user charge  113,756 145,173 
 Total charges and fees  617,925 603,779 
     
     
(c) Rates and Annual Charges     
     
 General rate income base  1,416,756 1,452,955 
 Domestic waste charge income base  1,232,826 1,235,101 
 Special Rate Base  76,000 76,125 
 Total rates and annual charges  2,725,582 2,764,181 
     
     
(d) Other Revenue     
     
 Reimbursement income  47,872 33,026 
 Sales  1,149,124 702,571 
 Service fee  755,920 859,420 
 Contract fee  12,263,924 11,342,788 
 Other operating income  195,863 696,989 
 Total other operating revenues  14,412,703 13,634,795 
     
 Income from Sale of Assets  391,093 243,745 
 Interest Income   233,268 400,784 
     
 TOTAL INCOME   41,723,782 42,077,180 
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5 Expenses  
 

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
(a) Employee Costs     
     
     
 Salaries wages and leave entitlements  13,248,578 13,906,645 
 Superannuation  1,275,944 1,357,892 
 Workers compensation  612,250 361,063 
 Allowances and other staff costs  1,556,014 1,308,000 
     
 Total employee costs  16,692,785 16,933,598 
     
(b) Materials and Contracts     
 Consultants  1,708,710 658,498 
 Contractors  6,527,452 5,845,566 
 Materials  1,107,685 911,208 
 Total materials and contracts  9,343,847 7,415,272 
     
(c) Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment      
 and Asset Write Off     
 Buildings, Roads and Infrastructure  3,412,821 3,403,732 
 Amortisation of Intangible Assets  427,644 159,279 
 Plant and Equipment  896,927 852,191 
 Furniture and Fittings  186,524 22,204 
 Motor Vehicles  968,523 734,511 
 Impairment   0 0 
 Asset Write Off Expense  466,076 0 
 Total Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment, etc  6,358,514 5,171,916 
     
(d) Finance Costs     
     
 Interest Expense   208,723 213,432 
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 5. Expenses (cont’d)    

 

 
   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
(e) Other Expenses     
     
 Accounting and audit fees  82,220 47,245 
 Advertising  27,372 29,394 
 Bad debts expense  24,460 127,781 
 Bank fees and charges  10,299 6,552 
 Chairman and councillor payments  359,212 325,116 
 Communication  666,438 635,720 
 Contributions and donations  60,829 3,000 
 Cost of sales  319,041 377,966 
 Food and catering  360,569 451,489 
 Freight  69,909 142,951 
 Fuel and oil  366,693 457,962 
 Insurance  837,241 765,689 
 Leases  189,564 263,915 
 Legal fees  15,628 26,072 
 Licenses and registrations  207,090 170,367 
 Memberships and subscriptions  128,261 99,460 
 Repairs and maintenance  81,538 11,187 
 Printing and stationeries  58,873 49,069 
 Software and computer expenses  61,248 27,341 
 Trainings and seminars  243,010 90,264 
 Travel and accommodation  570,080 527,558 
 Utilities  858,511 896,479 
 Other expenses  631,716 2,675,697 
 Total other expenses  6,229,801 8,421,706 
     
 ALL EXPENSE   38,833,671 38,155,925 
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6. Gain or Loss on Disposal of Asset   

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Profit on disposal of assets   408,211 243,745 
Loss on disposal of assets   -17,118 0 
Total gain (loss) on disposal of assets   391,093 243,745 
 
     

7.  Cash   

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents     
     
 Cash at Bank Operational General  98,382 55,241 
 Cash at Bank Business Online Saver  21,046,982 14,280,265 
 Cash at Bank Trust Account  1,343 57,791 
 Cash at Bank - Numbulwar Fuel`  2,837,367 2,447,525 
 Cash on Hand Petty Cash  100 100 
 Cash at Banks   23,984,174 16,840,922 
     
(b) Short Term Deposits     
 Investments - Term Deposit - NAB  0 4,038,479 
 Investments - Term Deposit - ME Bank  3,000,000 0 
 Investment - Term Deposit - Bank of Queensland  5,000,000 5,000,000 
 MyState Bank - Term Deposit  0 3,000,000 
 Macquarie Bank - Term Deposit  0 2,000,000 
 Investment - Term Deposit - AMP  9,000,000 5,000,000 
   17,000,000 19,038,479 
     
(c) Interest Income   233,268 400,784 
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8 Trade and other receivables 
   2021 2020 
   $ $ 
Trade receivables   1,554,299 341,399 
Allowance for doubtful debts   0 -9,117 
   1,554,299 332,282 
     
Rates receivables   206,069 189,722 
Allowance for doubtful rates receivable   -70,878 -44,693 
   135,191 145,029 
     
     
Accrued Income   160,000 493,151 
TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES   1,849,489 970,462 
     
The movement in the allowance for impairment is reconciled as 
follows:     
     
Balance at the beginning of the year   53,810 75,054 
Impairment loss recognised on receivables   -17,068 -21,244 
Impairment loss reversed   0 0 
     
Balance at the end of the year   70,878 53,810 
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8 Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 
 

The Following table details Council's trade and other receivables exposure to credit risk (prior to 
collateral and other credit enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for 
thereon. Amounts are considered as 'past due' when the debt has not been settled, within the terms 
and conditions agreed between the Council and the customer or counter party to the transaction. 
Receivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors 
and are provided for where there is objective evidence indicating that the debt may not be fully 
repaid to the Council. The balances of receivables that remain within initial trade terms are 
considered to be of high credit quality. 

  Gross 
Amount 

 

Past Due and  
Impaired 

 

Not Past 
Due 

 

2021     
 Trade Receivables 1,554,299 0 1,554,299 
 Other Receivables 206,069 -70,878 135,191 
 Accrued Income 160,000 0 160,000 
  1,920,367 -70,878 1,849,489 
     
2020     
 Trade Receivables 341,399 9,117 332,282 
 Other Receivables 189,722 44,693 145,029 
 Accrued Income 493,151 0 493,151 
  1,024,272 53,810 970,462 
2019     
 Trade Receivables 242,859 24,641 218,218 
 Other Receivables 207,781 50,413 157,368 
 Accrued Income 1,334,188 0 1,334,188 
  2,611,170 75,054 1,709,774 

 

The Council does not hold any financial assets with terms that have been renegotiated, but which 
would otherwise be past due or impaired 
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9 Inventories 

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Workshop inventory   55,097 50,828 
Diesel fuel   129,679 127,957 
Opal fuel   31,894 51,901 
     
Total inventories   216,670 230,686 

10    Other Current Assets    

 
 
 

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Others   151,004 179,870 
Total other current assets   151,004 179,870 
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11  Property, Plant and Equipment  
 

 2021 2,020 
 $ $ 
Carrying amounts of: 4,141,000 4,223,000 
Land and improvements 4,510,579 5,415,489 
Right-Of-Use-Asset 4,979,099 0 
Intangible Assets other  49,149,287 51,203,999 
Buildings and infrastructure 8,500,172 4,423,032 
Roads 3,879,424 3,625,800 
Plant and equipment 0 186,524 
Furniture and fixtures 3,396,151 2,422,989 
Motor vehicles 5,161,777 9,701,277 
Capital Work in progress 83,717,488 81,202,108 
   
Impairment losses recognised in the year  0 0 
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The Council's freehold land and buildings are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value 
at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses.  

In June 2021, the Council undertook a full review of all its Land, Buildings and Infrastructures assets. 
The fair value of the Council’s fixed assets was determined and approved by the Council on the basis 
of an independent valuation carried out by AssetVal, who are certified practicing valuers. The Land, 
Buildings and Infrastructure assets are valued at depreciated current replacement costs. Land is 
valued based on sales of similar items within surrounding areas. 

Council assets are revalued after every five years as per council’s policy. The next revaluations are 
due in 2026.  

Details of the Council’s freehold land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as 
at 30 June 2021 are as follows: 

 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value as at 
   30/06/2021 
 $ $ $ 
Land  2,945,000 1,196,000 4,141,000 
Buildings and Infrastructure  2,360,000 46,789,286 49,149,286 
Roads   8,500,172 8,500,172 
 5,305,000 56,485,458 61,790,458 
    
   Fair Value as at 
   30/06/2020 
 $ $ $ 
Land  4,223,000  4,223,000 
Buildings and Infrastructure  4,562,557 46,641,442 51,203,999 
Roads   4,423,033 4,423,033 
 8,785,557 51,064,475 59,850,032 

 

The fair value of the Council land was determined based on the market comparable approach that 
reflects recent transaction prices for similar land.  

For the purpose of building, these have been segregated as specialised and non-specialised 
buildings. The fair value of the specialised buildings, roads and other infrastructure was determined 
using the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market participant to construct assets of 
comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence. The significant inputs include the estimated 
construction costs and other ancillary expenditures, and a depreciation factor applied to the 
estimated construction cost.  Changes in the depreciation factor and/or construction costs can 
impact the fair value of the buildings. 

The fair value of non –specialised buildings was determined based on income approach using future 
cash generating capability of the asset based on current market expectations.  Any change in 
estimated rental yield on property may have significant impact on the fair value buildings. 
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 Capital 
Work in 
Progress Land 

Right of 
Use 

Buildings & 
infra Roads 

Plant & 
Equipment 

Furniture & 
Fittings 

Motor 
Vehicle TOTAL 

 Cost Fair Value  Fair Value Fair Value Cost Cost Cost  
Cost of valuation           
Balance as at 1 July 2020 9,701,277 4,223,000 5,574,768 57,352,529 4,971,257 13,176,265 350,759 8,213,307 103,563,162 
Additions  4,809,792               4,809,792 
Transfers  -9,349,290     1,792,040 4,361,959 1,234,481   1,960,810 0 
Disposals        -341,444   -5,797,766 -350,759 -4,619,324 -11,109,293 
Revaluation    82,000 -745,631 -9,653,839         -10,317,470 
Balance as at 30 June 2021 5,161,778 4,141,000 4,829,137 49,149,286 9,333,216 8,612,980 0 5,554,793 86,782,190 
                    
Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment                    
Balance at 1 July 2020 0 0 -159,279 -6,148,530 -548,225 -9,550,466 -164,235 -5,790,319 -22,361,054 
Depreciation/Amortisation Expense      -159,279 -3,119,881 -292,939 -896,927 -186,524 -968,523 -5,624,073 
Eliminated on Disposal of Assets     0 9,268,411 8,119 5,713,835 350,759 4,600,200 19,941,324 
Balance at 30 June 2021 0 0 -318,558 0 -833,045 -4,733,558 0 -2,158,642 -8,043,803 
                    
Written Down Value:                   
                    
1 July 2020 9,701,277 4,223,000 5,415,489 51,203,999 4,423,032 3,625,799 186,524 2,422,988 81,202,108 
                    
  
Consolidated Book Value at 30 June 2021 
 

5,161,778 4,141,000 4,510,579 49,149,286 8,500,171 3,879,422 0 3,396,151 78,738,387 
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12 Trade and other payables 
   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Trade payables   1,795,001 1,411,944 
Accrued Expenses   980,363 485,231 
Other payables   628,544 467,438 
Total trade and other payables   3,403,908 2,364,612 
     
     

13 Borrowings      
   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Current    82,216 52,203 
Lease Liabilities      
     
Non-current    4,646,457 5,474,304 
Lease Liabilities      
     
Total    4,728,673 5,526,507 

  

       14  Grant Liabilities    

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
Grants Unspent    11,457,766 10,469,405 
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 15  Provisions   

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
     
Current    1,433,501 1,357,765 
     
Non-current       
Long Service Leave    422,498 357,858 
Other (Landfill)    4,402,851  
     
TOTAL    6,258,850 1,715,623 

 

Council recognised a provision for the first time in 2021 for future expenditures to rehabilitate 
landfill sites.         

     

16  Other Current Liabilities   

   

 2021 2020 
 $ $ 
Current Liabilities  626,031 0 

 

The major component Current Liabilities in 2021 comprises expenditures to rehabilitate landfill sites 
that Council expects top fall due in the 2021-2022 financial period.    
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17  Commitments  

 

  2021 2020 
  $ $ 
Leases     
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments     
Within one year   237,569 179,939 
More than one but less than five years   256,775 194,375 
Total Balance at end of financial year   494,344 374,314 
    
Non-current     
Long Service Leave   576,248 357,858 

 

18  Grant Obligations   

   2021 2020 
   $ $ 
a) Unexpended grants     
 Special purpose grant - Australian Government  1,711,423 952,742 
 Special purpose grant - NT Government  2,938,980 3,476,812 
 Capital grant - Australian Government  354,969 580,196 
 Capital grant - NT Government  6,447,644 5457467 
 Other grants and contributions  4,750 1,828 
   11,457,766 10,469,045 
     
b) Reconciliation of unexpended grants    $ 
 Unexpended grants at 1 July   10,469,405 12,140,250 
 Grants received during the year   15,298,242 22,759,051 
 Grants expended during the year   -14,309,881 -24,430,256 
 Total unexpended grants at 30 June   11,457,766 10,469,045 

 

19  Contingent Liabilities  

The following liability does not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet but knowledge of this 
items is considered relevant to user of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about 
the allocation of scarce resources. 

1.     EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

At the date of these reports, Council recognises a contingent liability arising from potential legal 
action from a former member of staff. Further legal advice will be taken in the event the matter is 
brought forward by the former employee. Council expects to clarify the matter in the 2021-2022 
period. 
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20  Financial Risk  

 Note 30 June 2021 Within 1 Year Total 
   $ $ 
Trade and other payables  12 30 June 2021 3,403,908 3,403,908 
Grant Liability  14  11,457,766 11,457,766 
     
   14,861,674 14,861,674 
     
     
   $ $ 
Trade and other payables  12 30 June 2020 2,364,612 2,364,612 
Grant Liability  14  10,469,045 10,469,045 
     
   12,833,657 12,833,657 
     
   2021 2020 
   $ $ 
Short term deposit  7b  17,000,000 19,038,479 
     
   2021  

  
 +100 basis 

points 
-100 basis 

points 
   $ $ 
Effect on Statement of Profit or Loss   3,500 -3,500 
and Other Comprehensive Income      
     
   2020  

  
 +100 basis 

points 
-100 basis 

points 
   $ $ 
Effect on Statement of Profit or Loss   4,000 -4,000 
and Other Comprehensive Income      
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21  Related Parties  

The related parties of the Council include: 

• the key responsible persons because they have authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Council directly; and 

• spouses, children and dependents who are close family members of the key responsible 
persons; and 

• any entities controlled or jointly controlled by key responsible persons or controlled or jointly 
controlled by their close family members. 

  

Key Management Personnel  

The Key Management Personnel of the Council include the President, Vice President, Councillors, 
CEO and certain prescribed officers under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999. They were 
paid the following total compensation:  

 

 2021 2020 
 $ $ 
Short term employee benefits  946,640 1,094,145 
Post-employment benefits  0 16,145 
Allowances, etc  372,139  
 1,318,778 1,110,290 

 

22  Reserves  

 

Properties Revaluation   2021 2020 2019 
  $ $ $ 
Balance at beginning of year   54,910,531 54,910,531 54,910,531 
Properties Revaluation   -832,892 0 0 
Balance at end of year   54,077,639 54,910,531 54,910,531 
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23  Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows  

Reconciliation to net cash flows from Operating Activities  

   2021 2,020 
   $ $ 
 Gain (Loss) for the year  2,890,111 3,921,255 
 Adjustment For :    
 Depreciation and amortisation  6,358,514 5,171,917 
 Net profit on disposal of assets  -391,093 -243,745 
 Landfill finance cost  -218582 0 
 Operating profit before change in working capital  8,638,950 8,849,427 
     
 Change in working capital:    
 (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables  -879,027 739,312 
 (Increase) decrease in inventories  14,016 -31,956 
 (Increase) decrease in other assets  28,866 -172,535 
 (Decrease) increase in trade and other payables  644,133 401,958 
 (Decrease) increase in grant liability  988,361 -1,670,845 
 (Decrease) increase in provisions  140376 33,984 
     
 Net change in working capital  936,725 -700,082 
     
 Net cash flows generated from Operating Activities   9,575,675 8,149,345 
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AAC  
Alawa Aboriginal Corporation

AAI  
Alcohol Action Initiative

ABS  
Australian Bureau of Statistics 

AGD  
Department of Attorney-General 
(Commonwealth)

AFL  
Australian Football League

AMP  
Asset Management Plan

AOD  
Alcohol and Other Drugs

ATSI  
Aboriginal Torres Strait Islander

CACP  
Community Aged Care Package

CASA  
Civil Aviation Safety Authority 

CCTV  
Closed-circuit television

CDP  
Community Development Program

CEO  
Chief Executive Officer 

CIG  
Capital Infrastructure Grant 

Community  
The term ‘Community’ refers to all groups 
of people living in the Region, unless 
specifically stated otherwise 

ComSafe  
Community Safety

CSC  
Council Services Coordinator 

DAGJ  
Department of Attorney-General and 
Justice

DBCDE  
Department of Broadband, 
Communication and the Digital Economy 
(Commonwealth) 

DCA  
Department of Communications and the 
Arts (Commonwealth) 

DCM  
Department of Chief Minister 

DENR  
Department of Environment  
and Natural Resources 

DET  
Department of Education and Training 
(Commonwealth) 

DHS  
Department of Human Services

DIPL  
Department of Infrastructure, Planning 
and Logistics

DLPE  
Department of Lands, Planning and the 
Environment 

DoE  
Department of Education 

DoH  
Department of Health 

DPMC  
Department of Prime Minister and 
Cabinet (Commonwealth) 

DSS  
Department of Social Services 
(Commonwealth) 

DTBI  
Department of Trade, Business and 
Innovation

DTSC  
Department of Tourism, Sport and Culture

DWP  
Daly Waters Progress Association 

ELP  
Enterprise Learning Program 

EOI  
Expression of Interest 

FRRR  
Foundation for Rural and Regional 
Renewal 

GMCSE  
General Manager Community Services 
and Engagement 

GMISP  
General Manager Infrastructure Services 
and Planning

HMP  
Housing Maintenance Program 

HR  
Human Resources 

IAN  
Indigenous Affairs Network 

IAS  
Indigenous Advancement Strategy 

IBP  
Indigenous Broadcasting Program 

ICC  
Indigenous Coordination Centre 

ILC  
Indigenous Land Corporation

IPWEA  
Institute of Public Works Engineering 
Australia 

ISRP  
Indigenous Sport and Recreation Project

IT  
Information Technology

IVMS  
In-Vehicle Monitoring System

JCAC  
Jilkminggan Community Aboriginal 
Corporation

KPI  
Key Performance Indicator

LA  
Local Authority 

LAPF  
Local Authority Project Funding

LDM  
Local Decision Making

LWOP  
Leave without Pay
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M   
Million

MAC  
Mungoorbada Aboriginal Corporation 

MAM  
Minister for Arts and Museums 

MAP  
Multi-Agency Plan

MARA  
Mabunji Aboriginal Resource Association 

MOU  
Memorandum of Understanding 

MRM CBT  
McArthur River Mine Community Benefits 
Trust

MVR  
Motor Vehicle Registry

NDIS  
National Disability  
Insurance Scheme

NFA  
New Future Alliance

NIAA  
National Indigenous  
Australians Agency

NLC  
Northern Land Council 

NPO  
Not Permanently Occupied 

NQF  
National Quality Framework

NSRF  
National Stronger Regions Fund

NT  
Northern Territory

NTCET  
Northern Territory Certificate of 
Education and Training

NTEPA  
Northern Territory Environment 
Protection Authority 

NTPFES  
Northern Territory Police, Fire and 
Emergency Services 

NTG  
Northern Territory Government

NTG SPG  
Northern Territory Government Special 
Purpose Grant

PMC  
Department of the Prime Minister and 
Cabinet (Commonwealth)

PWC  
Power and Water Corporation 

R&M  
Repair and maintenance 

R2R  
Roads to Recovery 

RAF  
Regional Arts Funding 

REIF  
Regional Economic  
Infrastructure Fund 

RGRC  
Roper Gulf Regional Council 

RIBS  
Remote Indigenous  
Broadcasting Program 

RSAS  
Remote School  
Attendance Strategy

RTO  
Registered Training Organisation 

RWMS  
Regional Waste  
Management Strategy 

S&R  
Sport and Recreation 

SASO  
Senior Administration  
Support Officer 

SHS  
Sunrise Health Service  
Aboriginal Corporation

SLT  
Senior Leadership Team

SNP  
School Nutrition Program 

SPG  
Special Purpose Grant 

TNT  
Tourism Northern Territory 

VOQ  
Visiting Officers’ Quarters 

WARM  
Waste and Resource Management

WHS  
Work Health and Safety 

Workshop  
Mechanical Workshop 

YMDAC  
Yugul Mangi Development Aboriginal 
Corporation 

YS  
Youth Services 






